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there, Exhibit number 1, and Officer Newton is showing you that all four of this cards
were found on the ground. |

Now it's going to be very important for you to look at this exhibit closely.
You'll find that five out of the six cards that were found on the ground were
uhexpired. The unexpired cards were found on the ground underneath the car.
When you look at the evidence you’li find that none of thé cards inside the purse
were unexpired. They were all expired. None of the cards inside the purse were.
expired -- excuse me -- they'd all. expired; |

So, here’s Exhibit 3 which, again, you'll see two of these cards were
found on the ground. Look at the expiration dates. Now the one card that was
found on the ground that had expired had recently expired. So, you really believe --
you don't check your common sense at the door - that all of the unexpired cards -
happened to just fall out of this purse while the expired cards remain inside it. |
There’s a reason on the ground underneath the ‘card ali of the cards were either not
expired or had recently expired. Why? Those were the cards that were most useful
to Defendant. |

Now Officer Newton said he did look around. He didn't see any of the
cards until after the car had moved. So, if it really did just spill out, how did it get
underneath the car? Now Officer Newton indicated that both straps were around
Defendant’s neck, both straps of the purse were around Defendant's neck and the
purse was about right here, close to his upper stomach or chest area. The reason
alt of the unexpired cards were underneath the caris, again, those were the cards
Defendant was intending to use.

You heard from Jamie Black. The unexpired cards when she |ast saw

them were in her wallet where the expired cards were in the console of her car.
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{and look at them. Compare the expiration dates, compare the expiration dates with

Now both her purse containing the wallet and the entire console were removed and
somehow taken. So, we have now at a later point in time Defendant possessing the
expired cards inside the purse, the cards that were left useful to Defendant, the
cards that were still on Defendant’s person, and the expired cards -- the éxpired

cards excuse me - that were on the ground. | encourage you to take these exhibits

the locations that Officer Newton indicated that he found these cards. There's a
correlation there that | just articulated and there's a reason for that correlation.

Now Defense said that you can presume -- 'm sorry-- Instruction
number 17. You may infer and conclude that a person who has more than two
cards had the requisite intent that you need tb find to find Defendant guilty beyond a
reasonable doubt. You have this avenue available to you. You all kn.ow we can't
pry what was inside Defendant's mind when he possessed these cards. It's
impossible for us to do that, but we can look at the circumstances. We can rely oh
this presumption to come up with our decision.

First of all, let's look at how Defendant reacted. As soon as he was
confronted by Officer Newton, he ran. In fact he said fuck off and ran. When Officer
Newton catches up he uses force to get away and takes off again and is finally
confronted right behind around the dumpster where Officer Newton ultimately takes
Defendant into custody. |

So, again, there’s no evidence that this purse had been around that
area before. Defendant himself said | found it down the street. He brought it with
him. These cards were all -- was in the purse and on the ground and were all in the
name of the Black family. Jamie’s name is found both on the ground and in the

purse. Lori and Michael Black's are found on the ground. So, it's clear these cards
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\these 13 cards were unexpired and all five fell out. Use your common sense. You

came from this purse. Jamie herself said these cards were all in my car when | last

saw them. Those cards were brought to that location on the ground by Defendant.
Again, all of the unexpired cards were on the ground. That's an

important fact for you to consi.der. It goes to Defendant’s intent to use those cards

and it goes to the fact the Defendant placed them there. | can’t imagine any

situation where something spilled out and the only thing that spilled out -- five out of

were instructed to use your common sense.

" Defendant is not charged with the keys, the cash, the toys. Set that
aside. That has no bearing in this case. Focus on the facts of this case. When you
take this evidence back to the jury room, ook at it; look at the cards, look at the
expiration date, look at where they were found. Read the law that was given to you
by the Judge. You can come to only one conclusion and that conclusion is that we
havé proven Defendant guilty of all 13 counts beyond a reasonable doubt. Thank
yOou.

THE COURT: Thank you, Mr. Jones,

At this time, Ladies and gentlemen, 'm going to ask my clerk to be --
swear in and the officers to take charge of the jurors and alternate jurors.
[The Court Clerk swore in the officers to take charge
of the jurors and alternate jurors]

THE COURT: Ladies and gentlemen, throughout this process two of you are
aitérnates. We don't let you know who the alternates are because my experience
has led me to believe that the alternates don't seem to take it as serious when they
don't believe that they're the ones to be involved in the actual deliberation. I've seen

‘em actually -- they're late, they don't seem to be as attentive, and by doing itin a

Rough Draft Transcript Day 2 - 69
548



10

11

12

13

14

- 15

16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

manner in which | dont let know _you'know who the alternates are, | watch
everybody and I'll tell you the alternates are just és attentive sometimes even more
attentive where it appears the rest of the jury are. Butin this case only 12 of yod will|
be deliberating. The alternates are very important, however, and when | téil you
who you are .please don't be offended by the fact that you won't get to deliberate
because you may be called in to deliberate depending on how the jury proceeds in
their deliberation. |

| So, at this point in time all individuals are going to be leaving and 12 of
you will be going into the deliberation room. We'll be giving you the -- what's been
included here in the evidence -- a copy of your instructions. But I'm going to ask Mr.
Lac and Ms. Bagan to provide the information that you have where we ¢an locate
you immediately when you leave. And when | mean locate you immediately not give
it to us immediately, but where we can contact you. So, don't give me a phone
number that we have to call 50 people to find you. Give me somefhing I can get you
right away; okay. So, Mr. Lac and Ms. Bagan, you are my alternates you haven't
already figured that out, and | appreciate your attentiveness here. |

So, all of you will leave the courtroom. My marshal wili take you out

and we'll gét'the information from you and we'll letMr. Lac and Ms. Bagan also
know in the event that there's a verdict. Okay.

MR. JONES: And, Your Honor, |-apologize. Before the alternates leave, fhen
we do need to admonish them not to talk about this case as they might get called
into service. |

THE COURT: You're right. The admonishment that | provide you in every
recess also is in effect here as well. You are not allowed -- you're not released.

You're still my jury. So, you're not allowed to discuss this with anyone else in this
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matter until | inform you otherwise. All right. You understand? Okay. We'll be at
ease while the jury leaves the room.
[The jury retires to deliberate at 1:51 p.m ]
~ [Outside the presence of the jury]

THE COURT: Okay. We're outside the présence of the jury. I'd ask that you
leave your information for my clerk to reach you. Is there anything you need to put
on the record at this point. Mr. Gaston? |

MR. GASTON: No.

. THE COURT. Mr. Jones?

MR. JONES: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Allright. Okay.

THE COURT RECORDER: Are we off the record?

THE COURT: Yeah, we're off the record.

[Proceedings resumed at 3:49 p.m ]
[Outside the presence of the jury]

MR. JONES: Their client just got here, Your Honor. .! believe they went back
to confer.

THE COURT: Go on. Bring them in here.

Okay. We're back on the record in State of Nevada versus
Sayedbashe Sayedzada in C310000. | was told that we have a verdict. You want
to bring the jury in? Okay. |

[Inside the presence of the jury]

THE COURT: Okay. This is continuance of the jury trial in C310000, State of

Nevada versus Sayedbashe Sayedzada. I'd like the record to reflect the presence

of the Defendant and his counsel as well as State and their counsel. Will the parties
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without cardholder’s consent, guilty of possession of credit or debit card without

stipu[até to the presence of the jury?
MR. JONES: Yés, Your Honor.
MR. GASTON: Yes, Your Honor. |
THE COURT: | was informed that you've reached a verdict. Has the jury
elected a foreperson? Okay. Can you put your name on the record, please?
THE JURY FOREPERSON: Yes. My name is Connie Quan.
THE COURT: Okay. Ms. Quan, as the foreperson, has the jury reached a -
verdict then? |
THE JURY FOREPERSON: Yeah.
THE COURT: Okay. Can you provide that to my marshal. |
Okay. I'm going to ask the clerk now to read the verdict out toud.
Please rise. . |
THE COURT CLERK: District Count, Clark County, Nevada, the State of
Nevada, plaintiff versus Sayedbashe Sayedzada, Defendant; case number C-15-
310000-1, Department 19, Verdict.
We the jury in the above-entitled case find the Defe.ndant, Sayedbashe

Sayedzada, as follows: Count 1, possession of credit card or credit or debit card

cardholder’s consent; count 2,' possession of credit or debit card without
cardholder's consent, guilty of possession of credit or debit card without cardhold'ef’s
consent; count 3, possession of credit or debit card without cardholder's consent,
quilty of possession of credit or debit card without cardholder’s consent; count 4,
possession of bredit or debit card without cardholder's consent, guilty of possession
of credit or debit card without cardholder’s consent; count 5, possession of credit or

debit card without cardholder’s consent, guilty of possession of credit or debit card
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|without cardholder's consent; count 6, possession of credit or debit card without

twithout cardholder’s consent; count 10, possession of credit or debit card without

consent; count 1 1; possession of credit or debit card without cardholder's consent,

cardholder’s consent, guilty of possession of credit or debit card without cardholder’s
consent; count 7, pdssession of credit or debit card without cardholder’s consent,
guilty of possession of credit or debit card without cardholder’s consent; count 8,
possession of credit or debit card without cardholder's consent, guilty of possession
of credit or debit card without cardholder’s consent; count 9, possession of credit or

debit card without cardholder's consent, guilty of possession of credit or debit card
cardholder’s consent, guilty of possession of credit or debit card without cardholder’s

guilty of possession of credit or debit card without cardholder’s consent; count 12,
po.ssession of credit or debit card without cardholder's consent, guilty of possession-
of credit or debit card without cardholder’s consent; count 13, possession of credit or
debit card without cardholder's consent, guilty of possession of credit or debit card
without cardholder’s consent. Dated thé 23" day of March, 2016, signed
Foreperson Connie Quan.
L.adies and gentlemen of the jury, are these your verdicts as read so
say you one so say you all?
THE JURY PANEL: Yes.
THE COURT: Do either party wish to have the jury polled individually?
MR. JONES: No, Your Honor.
" MR. GASTON: No, Your Honor.
THE COURT: Okay. Thank you. ['ll ask the clerk now to record the verdict.
Go ahead and have a seat. Ladies and gentlemen, as you know, the

right of jury trial is one of our basic and fundamental constitutional guarantees. |
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| the first place, but I'm telling you I'm very pleased that the 14 of you and the other

|{two that aren't here now of willing to give us your time. | saw that you were very

not to you can let them know that you don't want to talk about it and if they persist,

tatked about that earlier. | firmly believe in this right. | do believe that every person
accused of a crime needs to be judged by a fair and impartial jury. You must have
jurors that - in those situations. Unfortunately many individuals try to shirk that

responsibility. | don't know how many of you here may have tried to get out ofitin

attentive to this endeavor. Fortunately for you all it was a two day trial. Sometimes
these cases take a little bit longer. Next week | have a medical malpractice case
that's probably going to take about three weeks. And so you can imagine the strain
that we have on our jurors. But | really appreciate that you gave us your time. |
believe you were very conscientious and attentive to the proceedings here, and |
want to tell you on behalf of counse! and the parties in the Eighth Judicial District
Court here 1 want to thank you for your careful deliberation in this matter.
| The question may arise now whether or. not you-can discuss this case

with other individuals. You can. However, you do not have to do, and if you choose

please let me know and our marshal will take care of that.

The parties oftentimes will want to talk to you afterwérd_s to discuss the |.
case with you and what you -- maybe they could have done better or maybe they
shouldn't have done, that type of thing, to help them understand the juries that we
have in today's society here in Las Vegas. I'm go'ing to come back and talk to you
shortly before you leave. | have some remarks | want to make with you back in the
jury room. But ] want to tell you | want to thank you very much for doing this and
giving us your time. So, we'll be at ease while the jury is excused. |

[Outside the presence ofthe jury]
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|heard the trial. If we had done a custody issue, one of the factors to consider is the

‘his innocence. It wasn't that he was never willing to plead guilty, he was - he

One of the factors to consider -- if we had done a custody motion before

trial which we did way back then, but this Court has now heard the evidence and-

client's ability to make that bail. Obviously he’s indicate3d he can’t afford that bail.
Addifionaiiy, after hearing all of the evidence, yes, he was found guilty,
but | think it bears note a couple different things, bears note that might make this
Court reconsider its decision. | know it just indicated no bail but | would think the
Court might reconsider'givén the new circumstances. Not only did it hear all of the
evidence that came out but additionally Sayed's posture throughout this case,
specifically he has -- it was obvious chances at a resolution and negotiations, Sayed

has continually rejected negotiations in this case because he steadfastly maintained

maintained his innocence with respect to the misdemeanor possession of stolen
property and the other crimes. |

- He never wanted to plead to the felony which he always maintained his
innocence. He believed in the system, he believed in the fact that there’s a trial, and
he wanted to stand before that. He has stood before that. He respects the jury's
decision; he respects that based on the evidence they find him -- they found him
guilty of all these counts bey'ond a reasonable doubt and he accepts that verdict
obviously. Butrgiven his posture and his behavior in this case and the fact that the
Court has considered this evidence, | would think that the Court might reconsider
the no bail and at least leave the standard bail at 39,000 that’s still there. But, in the
alternative, | woﬁld ask that it reconsider stacking the bail for each count because
reaIIy.this is one incident of having a purse with multiple cards. So, | would ask that

the Court reduce the bail to $3,000 pending sentencing.
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{looking at his history. So, we are asking for a no bail hold at this time.

MR. JONES: And, Your Honor, | would point out this was heard in District
Court in front of the Honorable Judge Johnson. An-OR motion was made and he
did deny that motion. And some of the factors that we have with respect to this
Defendant are he's a two time prior felon. We have a 2003 coercion and a 2004
reckless driving resulting in substantial bodily harm. |

Additionally, according to the Clark County Justice Court intake

services sheet, he had 19 failures to appear. Now, Your Honor, we have -- this
Defendant no longer cloaked in the presumption of innocence. He had 19 failure to

appear. Quite frankly, the likelihood of him coming back to sentencing is minimal

THE COURT: Okay. Yeah, no bail.

MR. JONES: Thank you, Your Honor. |

THE COURT: We'll set the sentencing date. But | do want you to file that in
writing and give the State an opportunity. | want to see how they address that.

MR. GASTON: Yes, Your Honor. |

THE COURT: Okay. Allright.

[Jury Trial, Day 2, concluded at 4:01 p.m.]

ATTEST: Pursuant to Rule 3(c)(d) of the Nevada Rules of Appellate Procedure, |
acknowledge that this is a rough draft transcript, expeditiously prepared, not
proofread, corrected, or certified to be an accurate transcript.
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LAS VEGAS, NEVADA, MONDAY, APRIL 11, 2016 at 9:34 AM.

THE COURT: Bottom of page 2, State of Nevada versus Sayedbashe
Sayedzada. This is C310000.
This is Defendant’s motlon at th|s time for a judgment of acquittal
notwithstanding the verdict, or, in the alternative, for a new trial. My

understanding is that the judgment of acquittal is ~- are you only - you're only

| dealing with certain counts, is that correct?

MR. GASTON: Yes, Your Honor.
THE COURT: Okay. And for the record, if I'm reading it right. They re
counts, 1,2, 8,9, 10, 11 and 12. Those counts all deal with the -- | guess it's the

credit cards that were in the purse that were expired; right?

MR. GASTON: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay. Do you want to add anything to your motion? I've
read your motion. |-~ |

MR. GASTON: | have a couple brief --justa couple brief comments.

THE COURT: Okay. |

MR. GASTON: In order to grant our motion the Court doesn"t have to
adopt some kind of broad rule that a person can never have the intent to use an
expired credit card. And if we think about it that kind of makes sense.

Because let's assume a defendant's ata store he hands over a card
that isn'f his and tries to pay for something only to find out later it's expired. Well
that guy clearly had a card. He clearly didn’t know it was expired. And he clearly
intended to use it. So it doesn’t make sense that that guy would catch & lucky

break basically because it happened to turn out to be expired.

2
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linside the purse so he didn't know -- they had nothing to show that he knew the

But that's not what happened here. So, | think we can agree that a
person can have the intent to use an expired card. But the reason the State’s
case was so strong is because there literally was only one conclusion. For those

cards being underneath the car -- | mean our big defense was he didn't look

cards were there. And even if they did he didn’t have the intent to use it.

But the reason the State won this case and the reason it was strong
is because the only conclusion that could -- the jury could’ve drawn is he clearly
must have looked inside the purse and sorted the cards. Because otherwise how
on earth are only the unexpired cards beneath the car and the expired ones are
in the purse? It's clearly because he previously sorted through the ones he could
use and couldn't use, notice which were expired and which weren't, kept the
ones he could use on him, and ditched them later while he was waiting for the
police. | |

So he clearly noted as contracts with the example | gave. He clearly
had noticed which cards were expired and unexpired. You can’t use an expired
card. He knew that. So, therefore, he couldn'thave had the intent to use those
cards. So, in this case, given these facts, a reasonable trier of fact couldn’t of
inferred from this evidence that he intended to use the expired cards because he
clearly noticed which were expifed and which wéren’t. And on that | submit.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. JONES: | don't have a lot to add to my opposition, Your Honor. [ just
want to point out that what.Defense failed to address though in their motion was
the fact that the jury may rely on a presumption in this case.

That if a -- more than two credit cards are found on Defendant’s
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was the fact that the Defendant himself sorted those cards. | think the fact that

| Defendant's neck shows in and' of itself some intent to use those cards.

|| Your Honor. Defendant ran. He engaged in an altercation in an attempt to get

!

or in the Defendant’s actual or constructive pc_issession that the jury, at that point,
may then infer intent with respect to those cards. Again, they don't have to but
they can.

And in this case | think because it was -~ there was obvious|y beyond
a reasonable doubt evidence that he had intent with respect to the unexpired
cards that were found on the ground, that the jury could then rely on the
presumption with respect to the cards th'at were hanging around Defendant's
neck in the purse. |

Now, I'm not saying the jury had to rely on the presumption in order
to find Defendant guiity with respect to those cards. | think Defense hit the nail

on the head when they indicated that the only conclusion that the jury can draw
the Defendant kept those cards even though they were expired around

Now granted it might have been fruitless at the end, but the intent is

the important thing to focus on. Additionally, we have all the other evidence,

away. | think that coupled with everything else shows that the jury really had two
paths with respect to this case. _ _
The first path being he had the intent with respect to all cards. Or,
they had the presumption that they could rely on. And in either-way, Your Honor,
it led to one conclusion and it's Defendant’s guilt with respect to-alf counts.
THE COURT: Okay. Thank you.
MR. GASTON: I'll submit, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Mr. Gason, with respect to this case you've asked for two
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different things. You've asked for a verdict with regards to those counts or, in the
alternative, a new trial.

For purposes of the new trial 'm denying your motion there. With
respect to the other counts my inclination initially was kind of going your way.
But when | went back and looked at the facts again -- and it seems like in your
motions you've forgot this. The one hanging fact with me was that the witness
who owned the cards, who owned the car, indicated that the cards were in a
center console separate from the cards that were in her purse that were the valid
cards in the purse and that -- and thé expired cards were in the center console.

So considering that -- that there’s some point in time that they were
separated and then they were re-separated. -Now there wasn’t any facts to
support that he actually was the one that stole anything from the car. But there's
a reasonable inference based on the time frame, where he was coming from, that
that was something that had to of occurred.

And so the fact that he had put those cards in the pursé; if he did
that. Or the cards were in the purse and then the other ones were in his pocket
or on the ground. A reasonable belief that they were in his pocket and he was
discarding them when he was sitting over there by himself is that he had full
inteht to -- and he doesn't necessarily have to use them. |

The statute says to circulate, use, sell or transfef the credit card.
And so if he sees that there not, you know, if they're expired cards, the reality is
that there's still other information on that that he could -- he used from it, or he
could sell those cards, or transfer those cards. So there’s other things that's
there as well. So, I'm denying your motion in its entirety at this time. For that

reason the sentencing will still stand and -- Okay?

5
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MR. GASTON: Thank you, Your Honor. And at this time | know the State

-- the Court denied my motion for this earlier at the end of trial.

Currently Sayedzada is being held without bail. Given that we've

litigated these issues and we brought to light some more, | guess, issues with the

case the Court has now considered the evidence. We've been in front of you

several times. | would just renew at this time my motion for a standard bail in this

case pending sentencing.
THE COURT: State?
MR. JONES: And I;d renew my objectioh, Your Honor.
THE COURT: Okay. The bai!l wili stand as | indicated previously.
MR. GASTON: Thank you. |
MR. JONES: Thank you, Your Honor.
THE COURT: Okay.
[PROCEEDINGS CONCLUDED at 9:41 A.M.]

* k k k *

ATTEST: | hereby certify that | have truly and correctly transcribed the
audio/visual proceedings in the above-entitled case to the best of my ability.
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Christine Erickson,
Court Recorder
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LAS VEGAS, NEVADA, WEDNESDAY, JUNE 8, 2016 ai 9:06 A.M.

THE COURT: Mr. Howeli? This is State of Nevada versus Sayedzada
-- Sayedbashe Sayedzada. This is C310000. This .is time set for sentencing.
Will the parties approach?

MR. DICKERSON: Yes, Your Honor. |

[BENCH CONFERENCE - NOT RECORDED]

THE COURT: Okay. Mr. Sayedzada? Mr. Howell represented at the
bench that you had i'ndicated that you don’t want to proceed today because
you want to file a motion for ineffective assistance of counsel?

THE DEFENDANT: Correct.

THE COURT: Okay. Sir, at this point in time that’s -- it's premature.
Because what -- time set for sentencing at this point -~ 1 think your proper
time frame would be any post-conviction because you've been found guilty
already based on this verdict. Do you unders.tand?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, | understand; I'm sorry.

THE COURT: So, with that being said do you feel comfortable going
forward now?

THE DEFENDANT: | mean -- there’s no way | could ask for a couple
weeks to stay it to file the motion [indiscernible] to see the exhibits and
everything to see what you're seeing?

THE COURT: Okay. I'm going to do that. |

MR. DICKERSON: The State opposes it just for the. record.

THE COURT: 1 understand. | do. | mean | heard the whole trial, Mr.

Dickerson.
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your mations. I'll review it. But I'm telling you my position probably won't

change ‘cause it - but I'll look at it. | will.

~ THE COURT: Yes.
'THE COURT CLERK: Okay.

for the motion as well. So you need to get these filed right away.

need to; okay?

MR. DICKERSON: Right.
THE COURT: I'll give Mr. Sayedzada any opportunity he wants. File

THE DEFENDANT: Okay. Ali right.

THE COURT: And I'll make a determination after | review it; okay’?
THE DEFENDANT: All right. | appreciate it.

THE COURT: All right.

THE DEFENDANT: Thank you.

THE COURT CLERK: Do you want me to set it for the motion as well?

THE COURT: What I’'m going to do is I'm going to set it in two weeks

THE DEFENDANT: All right. 1 will. |

THE COURT: And unless | need, you know, Mr. Dickerson?

MR, DICKERSON: Yes, Your Honor.

THE_COURT: I'm not going to require you to respond to them.

MR. DICKERSON: Okay.

THE COURT: Unless after | review them that | think you'd probably

MR. DICKERSON: Okay Thank you, Your Honor.
THE COURT CLERK: June 20™ at 8:30,
THE DEFENDANT: Thank you, Your Honor.
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THE COURT: All right.
[PROCEEDINGS CONGLUDED at 9:10 A.M.]
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LAS VEGAS, NEVADA, MONDAY, JUNE 20, 2016 at 9:23 A.M.

THE COURT: State of Nevada versus Sayedbashe Sayedzada. Thisis

_0310000; This is on for sentencing. Also, Defendant had indicated the last

time we were here that he was talking about filing a motion to relieve
counsel of any further obligatidn in this matter. | have not seen anything Mr.
Sayedbashe -- Sayedzada?
THE DEFENDANT: Judge -- yes -- | filed @ motion on Thursday. | put it
in. It should be in. {f -- 1 don’t know if you’ve got it yet or not?
THE COURT: | don't haveit. If | had it | would’ve said | had it but |
don't have it. ’ |
- THE DEFENDANT: Yeah. |put it in on Thursday. | mean that’s the
earliest | could put it in. | had not enough -- obviously, not enough time and
not enough resources to put everything together much sooner as | wanted
to. And [ put it all in on Thursday. it should be in -- | thought it would be in
by now to you.
[COLLOQUY BETWEEN COURT AND COURT CLERK]
THE COURT: Sir, | don't have it. It's not even in our system. So, ét
this point in time, like 1 told you,  think it's a little bit premature.
The concern | had is his claim and then now you'd be arguing at
sentencing. That's the -- and | actually don’t know what his claim is.
MR. GASTON: Do you mind if we approach?

THE COURT: Sure.
| [BENCH CONFERENCE - NOT RECORDED]

" THE COURT: Sir, what | want to do is I'm going to continue it till |

2
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have it. | want to read it to see what it's saying.

THE DEFENDANT: All right.

THE COURT: So before | go any further. So 1 --1want to see what
you have to say about it. So I'm going to continue this till after | get back.

THE COURT CLERK: Yeah. It’s going to be July 25"

THE COURT: July 25, '

THE DEFENDANT: | appreciate it.

THE COURT CLERK: July 25" at 8:30.

THE DEFENDANT: All right. Thank y'ou. |

MR. GASTON: Thank you, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right.

[PROCEEDINGS CONCLUDED at 9:27 A.M]
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LAS VEGAS, NEVADA, MONDAY, JULY 18, 2016 at 9:44 A M.

THE COURT: Page 7, State of Nevada versus Sayedbashe Sayedzada.
This is G310000. This is Defendant’s pro per motion to dismiss appointed
counsel and motion to dismiss criminal complaint and overturn conviction.

Mr. Sayedzada, | had an opportunity to review your motion.

You're asking me to dismiss counsel in this matter.

[COLLOQUY BETWEEN THE COURT AND THE COURT CLERK]

The arguments that you’re making in this case deal with -- and }
think | kind of talked to you about this before is that at the time -- that what
you're saying is that your counsel is effective in this matter and so you're
challenging for ineffect_ivé assistance reasons. That's probably better |
addressed in a post-conviction petition. | think | said that b.ef_ore because
you've aiready been convicted.

| Your motion to overturn the conviction in an extent that you're
asking me to do so, I'm denying that. I've sat here and watched this -- sat
over this trial, saw what was presented. Quite frankly | thought your |
attorneys did a pretty good job in light of the fact of what you were being

charged with so -- but, with that being said; I won't require you to go

through sentencing with these two attorneys. If you want, | mean,

obviously it's broke down there. He's complaining saying that you -—.and I
don't want to exacerbate with something h'appening down the road because
he's been convicted already.

~ 5o, you know, | -- to the extent that he’s asking you -- asking

you'to be relieved and he's claiming that your ineffective, I'm going to grant

2

ETE




10
11
12
13
14
15
18
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

that. I'm not finding that he was -- that you were ineffective. I'm just' doing

it because the timing in which he's asking for it, and what he's claiming in

|the trial which he’s going to be claiming later, | don’t want to cause another

argument to be made that you did something at sentencing. Which | don’t
know what y'ou couid possibly do to -- but that’s where I'm fooking at it that
way.

MR. JONES: So | just want to be clear, Your Honor, you're not finding
that counsel has in ahy way ineffective --

THE COURT: Nope.

MR. JONES: You're just saying because it appears that the
relationship has broken down to this extent --

THE COURT: Right.

MR. JONES: -- you’re going to give him new counsel for sentenCing?

THE COURT: I'm not makihg a finding of ineffectiveness --

MR. JONES: Okay. |

THE COURT: -- either because | don’t think it's appropriate at this
point. |

| will say, based on what | observed, and I've already said this -- |

thought what you've done was a -- | thought you did - with what you had
to work with, you both did a pretty good job. Matter of fact there was, |
think, I'm just going to put it on the record for the -- | mean | thought the
arguments that you were making -- | thought some were kind of ingenious. |

mean, you know, | was -- but, | mean, | think you tried to do what you

could.

So -- but I'm going to allow -- I'm going to grant his motion to

3
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relieve ydu of counsel. And I'm going to ask you at this point in time -- Mr.
Sayedbashe, did you want me to appoint new counsel for your sentencing or
do you want to represent yourself at sentencing?

THE DEFENDANT: No, | can get counsel at sentencing, Judge. 1don’t
know if --

THE COURT: Oh, you can get counsel?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes. Well, I'm asking you.

THE COURT:. Okay.

THE DEFENDANT: | don’t know if you got the full twelvé pages of the
motion? I've sent it in three different envelopes on the same date. Only
four | got a copy of. |

THE COURT: | have one, two --

THE DEFENDANT: There were only about four pages. There --
everyone - | don't know what happened to the other eight pages.' I've sent
it all at the same time to the county clerk.

THE COURT: 1 have eleven.

THE DEFENDA.NT: You have all eleven? Do you have the --

THE COURT: | have the motion to dismiss appointment of oounsel..
Motion to dismiss the_ criminal complaint. _

THE DEFENDANT: And then the exhibits and the --

THE COURT: | have the exhibits which include the preliminary hearing
transcript. Well, actual!y, one page which includes four pages. And then
your credit cards and debit cards definitions, cardholder define, which is NRS
205.610 through 205.760. Is that what you're talking about?

" THE DEFENDANT: Yes. All right.
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THE COURT: Yeah. | have those.
THE DEFENDANT: Okay.
THE COURT: So you said you want to hire your ow n.attorney’?
THE DEFENDANT: Yes.
THE COURT: Okay. When do you want to have him here so we can
do sentencing? |
THE DEFENDANT: | could --
THE COURT: Tell you what. I'll give you two weeks to get your
attorney in here; okay? lIs that going to be enough time?
THE DEFENDANT: Yeah. |was goingto ask you -- is there any way |
could get regular bail on this? | mean is there any way -- | mean --
THE COURT: To get bail?
THE DEFENDANT: Yeah.
THE COURT: You've been convicted of a multiple - multiple counts
here. You're getting ready to be sentenced.
THE DEFENDANT: [Indiscernible]
THE COURT: So why should | -- | mean, no. | remanded you without
bail based on the conviction. You’'re not entitled to bail at this point. Okay?
So how long do you need to get an attorney? Is two weeks
going to be enough time?
THE DEFENDANT: Two weeks should be more than enoughl time.
THE COURT: All right. Two weeks for confirmation of counsel and
then we'll set a sentencing date at that time.
THE DEFENDANT: Okay. Thank you.
' THE COURT CLERK: August 1% at 8:30. So I'll vacate the sentencing

5
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1 || date set for -- | _
2 THE DEFENDANT: Judge, is there any way | could make it a week

3 || from now? [Inaudible]

4 THE COURT: A week? Can we do a week?

5 MR. JONES: We're already on -- | have shown it’s on for 7/25 for

6 || sentencing. . |

7 THE COURT: The 25" for sentencing? We'll vacate the sentencing

8 {|date but we'll Iea{/e it on for confirmation of counsel; okay? So the 25",

9 THE DEFENDANT: Allright.

10 THE COURT: That'll be for your attormey. And | have -- so when you

1l talk to your attorney tell him | have eQerything to go ready for sentencing if
12 || he wants to -- if he or she comes in and says we're ready to do sentencing

3411l do it on that date if you'd like. .

14  THE DEFENDANT: All right. | will let them know .

15 THE COURT: Okay? |

16 THE DEFENDANT: All right.

17 THE COURT: If not we'll just have the attorney confirm and I'm sure

R 18 || your attorney will say Judge | need time to prepare for sentencing.

19 THE DEFENDANT: All right. | have other motions we’d probably be
: 20 || able to do so --
21||"  THE COURT: You have other motions? _
22 THE DEFENbANT: [Indiscernible] Yeah. I'li let -- my att'orney will be

23 ||here by next week and I'lf let him know what you said.
24 THE COURT: Okay. Well then I'm going to ask the State to file an

25 || order consistent with my decision here denying his motion to dismiss the

8
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criminal complaint and o_vertur.n the conviction. Okay?
MR. JONES: Will do, Your Honor.
MR. GASTON: Thank you, Your Honor.
MR. HOWELL: Thank you, Judge. .
[PROCEEDINGS CONCLUDED at 9:51 A.M.]
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' Sayedzada. This is C310000.

opportunity in this last week to hire new counsel.

yet. But | could go through -- forward with the sentencing if you want.

you did. Now I'm starting to think you’re playing.

conflict counsel.

weeks if we don't then I'm going to appoint new counsel.

LAS VEGAS, NEVADA, MONDAY, JULY 25, 2016 at 9:42 A.M.
THE COURT: Page 3. This is State of Nevada versus Sayedbashe

MR. JONES: Your Honor, I've been monitoring the check-in sheet. |

haven't seen any attorney check-in. | don't know if Defendant had the

THE COURT: Well he told me he was going to have him here.
THE DEFENDANT: Judge, | didn't get -- | wasn't able to hire new counsel

THE COURT: What's that?
THE DEFENDANT: | said | could go through with the sentencing if you'd
fike. | didn’t get an opportunity to bring in private counsel. -

THE COURT: Do you want time for having the counsel here? You told me

THE DEFENDANT: No. Im not-- | don't play. Yeah, | do want time.
THE COURT: All right. So how long do you need?

THE DEFENDANT: Can you give me another two weeks maximum?
THE COURT: Okay.

MR. JONES: Well here's the‘ thing, Your Honor --

THE COURT: I'm not going to sentence him without counsel,

MR. JONES: And | understand that. What | would ask is you to appoint a

THE COURT: [ will. I'm going to give him a chance first. And in two

2
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MR. JONES: Thank you, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay? All right. The Public Defender’s been relieved.

MR. COTTNER: Okay. Thank you.
" THE COURT: Al right.
THE COURT CLERK: August 8" at 8:30.
[PROCEEDINGS CONCLUDED at 9:43 A.M.]
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|| days of credit on a CAT D so -- | mean --

LAS VEGAS, NEVADA, MONDAY, AUGUST 8, 2016 at 9:20 A.M.

THE COURT: This is C310000. Sir, where’s your attorney? | keep
passing this over and you say you're going to hire somebody.

THE DEFENDANT: Your Honor, | couldn't get the proper
representation in. | couldn’t hire one. If you can, can you ine me a pro
bono or something for sentencing?

THE COURT: Okay. All right. Put this over to have Drew appoint
somebody for sentencing in this matter. And then he'll -- obviously the other
attorney will have to get caught up to speed.

So pass it two weeks for appointment of counsel and then we'll
set it for sentencing on that date. |

THE COURT CLERK: All right.

MR. JONES: So two weeks for appomtment’?

THE COURT: And then I'll have to give him a chance; all right? You
know | appreciate you coming back but -- |

| MR. JONES: And honestly, Judge, at this point Defendant has 321

THE COURT: | know.

MR. JONES: He’s extending his own stay.

THE COURT: | know. Because he likes it in jail better than prison
probably. | don’t know. That's -- | can kind of see where he's going with
this-and -- but I'll oblige him. You know, we'll -- before we get an -- before
he gets sentenced | want to make sure he has an attorney.

MR. JONES: | understand, Your Honor.
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THE COURT: Okay. Now we'll doit. Okay.
THE COURT CLERK: August 22

THE COURT: But | appreciate though that you were trying to hire your

own attorney; | do. So -- but other than that --

THE COURT CLERK: August 22" at 8:30.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. JONES: And that’s just for status check/appointment, correct?

THE COURT: Yeah. Because that attorney isn’t going to be ready to
go forward on sentencing. He's going to want to look at everything before
we go forwarrd.

MR. JONES: Thank you, Your honor.

THE COURT: Okay. Allright.

THE DEFENDANT: Judge, who's the attorney?

THE COURT: What's that?

THE DEFENDANT: Who's the attorney?

THE COURT: We're setting it to two weeks. | have to get --

THE DEFENDANT: Okay.

THE COURT: -- somebody to appoint one; okay?

THE DEFENDANT: Oh, all right.

THE COURT: We used to just pull them out of the audience and say
hey, do you want to do this and -- but we don't do that anymore. We have
an actual program that sends somebody over that's on a list.

THE DEFENDANT: All right.

THE COURT: Okay?

THE DEFENDANT: Al right.
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THE COURT: All right.
[PROCEEDINGS CONCLUDED at 9:22 A.M.]
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LAS VEGAS, NEVADA, MONDAY, AUGUST 22, 2016 at 8':48_A.M. _

THE COURT: This is C310000. This was on for appointment of
counsel. Not appointment of counsel -- for confirmatioﬁ of counsel. And is
it Mr. George?

MR. GEORGE: That's correct.

THE COURT: Mr. George, are you going to be confirming as counsel at
this point?

MR. GEORGE: That’.s correct.

THE COURT: All right. So what I'm going to go ahead and do Is set
this out for a-sentencing. That’s what we previously had set for sentencing
and -- how long do you think you need? , ;

MR. GEORGE: At least 30 days. |

THE COURT: All right. Set it out for sentencing in 30 days.

THE COURT CLERK: It's going to .be September 19" at 8:30.

MR. GEORGE: Thank you. |

THE COURT: All right. Thank you.

[PROCEEDINGS CONCLUDED at 8:49 A.M.]
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LAS VEGAS, NEVADA, WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 14, 2016 at 9:06 A.M.

THE COURT: State of Nevada versus Sayedbashe Sayedzada. This is
C310000. Mr. George? ' o _

MR. GEORGE Good morning, Your Honor. | was appointed to
represent Mr. Sayedbashe on C-15-310000. So I'm just here out of an
abundance of caution.

It appears to me that this matter was a municipal court matter.
So | wasn't quite sure what was going to happen with it.

THE COURT: He's asking to run this case concurrent with a -- so what
he's filed here.

THE DEFENDANT: It’s a - something on the - he said it was
[Indiscernible]. It was something | saw in the presentence investigatioh. It
shouid have been a misdemeanor or something. | don't know what it is.
That --

THE COURT: Well, sir, you’re asking me to run something concurrent

THE DEFENDANT: Right.

THE COURT: -- with another case and you haven’t even been
sentenced yet. That would be something you -- it would be argued I'd
imagine by your attorney or you when ! ask you what you want to say about
-~ and you ¢an point out what you have otherwise. But you haven't even
been senfenced in the case that | have here so | can’t --

THE DEFENDANT: Right. Right. Well | didn’t know it was coming in

front of you. | was - | thought it’d go in front of the other Court and I'd

2
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ask the other Gourt for -

THE COURT: Well you can ask --

THE DEFENDANT: -- them to run it concurrent while me being in here
for the 10 or 11 -- or for me being in here for the year. Since I've been for
the year almost. |

THE COURT: Okay.

THE DEFENDANT: That obviously - | didn’t know that this went into
warrant or that it even existed for the most parf.

THE COURT: Okay.

. THE DEFENDANT: So that’'s what | was basically trying to put the |
motion in for and it came in front of you.

THE COURT: When you --

"MR. SCOW: And Judge, | think -- Judge, | think what he did was he
grabbed the wrong paperwork. It's paperw ork for District Court and he
wrote on there department Municipal Court. So | think he might just need to
grab different paperw ork from the jail.

THE COURT: Well, what he needs to do is talk to his attorney about

THE DEFENDANT: All right.

THE COURT: Have Mr. George talk to you. He can explain it to you.
He can explain to you how concurrent sentences could run.

THE DEFENDANT: Right.

THE COURT: | can't really very well give you concurrent time with
anything that you haven't been sentenced on yet.

THE DEFENDANT: Right.
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‘muni court -- that's up to that Judge to appoint you there.

- THE COURT: And so the second the Judge uSuaIly going second or
third or whatever and all the way down the line is the one that would be
doing that. |

THE DEFENDANT: Right. . ,

THE COURT: And if you're talking about you're wanting credit for time
served for Why- ydu’re in jail to run with it that that’s -- that's different.
Credit for time served versus co'ncu-rrent time would be different. Your
attorney can explain that to you.

THE DEFENDANT: Right. Right. Right. Well --

THE COURT: So the sentencing’s on for the 19™. I'm just going to
leave it on for that.

MR. GEORGE: Right. Sure.

THE COURT: And we'll hear about it and then ['ll have a better
understanding of hdw you want to treat that.

MR. GEORGE: Okay.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. GEORGE: s that within the scope of my appointment? Dealing
with that? |

THE COURT: Yeah. Because you'd be sentencing him. | mean you'd
be here for purposes of sentencing. And you could make the arguments on
his behalf. |

MR. GEORGE: Right.

THE COURT: And however it deals. Now, whether it's a case out of

MR. GEORGE: Right.
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THE COURT: But you could certainly make an argument here if that
case wouldn't be affected at all. |

MR. GEORGE: Okay. Great.

THE COURT: Okay?

MR GEORGE: Okay. Thank you.

THE COURT: Thank you, Mr. Sayedbashe -- or Sayedzada.

THE DEFENDA-NT: Thank you.

THE COURT: Okay. All right.

[PROCEEDINGS CONCLUDED at 9:09 A.M ]
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LAS VEGAS, NEVADA, MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 19, 2016 at 8:51 A.M.

THE COURT: This is case number 0310000. On page 7, State of
Nevada versus 'Sayedbashe Sayedzada. Thisis time set for sentencing. Mr.

George is here on behalf of the Defendant. Defendant’s present in custody.

||Is there any legal reason why we can't go forward today?

MR. GEORGE: Could we continue the matter for one week, Your
Honor. | wanted to submit a sentencing memorandum and check with the -
check and_ see if | can get a global resolution with that Municipal Court
matter that we discussed last week.

MR ROGAN: I'll submit it, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay. Tell you what -- I'll give you a couple weeks so
wé don't back my calendar up here. So okay -- is that okay? |

THE COURT CLERK: Yeah. That's fine; I'm going to give them till
October 10" at 8:30.

THE COURT: No. Hold on -~ before we go -- Mr. Sayedzada, are you
okay with that?

THE DEFENDANT: A couple more w eeks?

THE COURT: What's that?

THE DEFENDANT: What you say -- a couple weeks until sentencing?

THE COURT: He wants to prepare a memorandum for the Court.

THE DEFENDANT: Yeah.

THE COURT: He's trying to do something with your other case.

THE DEFENDANT: Yeah, that would.

THE COURT: You okay?
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THE DEFENDANT: Yeah. That's fine | guess. Is there a sooner one?
A week from now?
THE COURT: No. !don't want to back my calendar up that's --

everyone wants to continue everything one week and then it just piles up.

| Okay?

THE DEFENDANT: All right.
THE COURT: Okay.
THE DEFENDANT: Ali right. Thank you.
- THE COURT: Okay. Mr. George, anything else?
MR. GEORGE: No. Thank you.
MR. ROGAN: What's the date?
THE COURT CLERK: October 10™ 8:30.
MR, ROGAN: Thank you.
[PROCEEDINGS CONCLUDED at 8:52-A.M.]
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LAS VEGAS, NE\/ADA, MONDAY, OCTOBER 10, 2016 at 8:53 A.M.

THE COURT: State of Nevada versus Sayedbashe Sayedzada. This is
C310000. This is time set for sentencing. Defendant is present in custody.
He's represented by Mr. George. Mr. George has provided the Court with a
sentencing memorandum in this case. Is there any legal reason why we
can't go forward on this today then? | |

MR. GEORGE: There's not.

THE COURT: I\/Ir.. Sayedzada, | received a copy of a presentence
investigation report dated May 13, 2016. Did you receive this?

THE DEFENDANT: | did. |

THE COURT: Did you read it?

THE DEFENDANT: | did.

THE COURT: Okay. And I've also received a copy of a sentencing
memorandum from your attorney, Mr. George. Have you seen that as well?

THE DEFENDANT: | did.

THE COURT: Okay. Is there anything in the investigation report that
you think -- the presentence investigation report you think’s incorrect or |
need to correct at this time?

THE DEFENDANT: No. it's pretty much correct.

THE COURT: Okay. And is there anything about the sentencing
memorandum that you don’t want me to consider?

THE DEFENDANT: Not -- that’s pretty much -- everything looks fine.

THE COURT: Okay. Since this was as a result of a jury verdict in this

matter I'm going to on Count 1 adjudicate you guilty of possession of a

2
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credit card_or debit card without a cardholder's consent. Count 2, guilty of
possession of a credit card or debit card without owner's consent. Count 3,
possession of a credit card or debit card without owner's consent. Count 4,
possession of credit or debit card without owner's consent. Count 5,
possession of credit or debit card without owner's consent. Count 8,
possession of credit or debit card without owner's consent. Count 7,
possession of a credit or debit card without owner’s consent. Count 8,
possession of a credit or debit card without owner's consent. Count 9,
possession of a credit or debit card without owner’s consent. Count 10,
possession of a credit or debit card without owner's consent. Count 11,
possessiron of a credit or debit card without owner’'s consent. Count 12,
possession of a credit or debit card without owner's consent.. And Count
13, possession of a credit or debit card without owner's consent.

I'm going to hear from the State and then I'll hear from you and

your attorney. QOkay, Mr. Sayedzada?

THE DEFENDANT: All right.

MR. JONES: Thank you, Your Honor. John Jones on behalf of the
State.

You sat through this trial so I'm not going to sit here and -
regurgitate the facts for you. But what | do want to point out is that
Defendant is é two time felon. He's got a 2003 conviction for coercion and
a 2004 conviction for reckless driving. According to the PSI he has 17
misdemeanor convictions including three battery domestic viole'nce’s in
2003, 2011, and 2012.

And I'll point out in this case, Your Honor, that as you heard, that,

3

6395




10

"

12

C13

14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

Counts that | had mentioned. And then finally Count 6 to run consecutive to

you know, Defendant did imme’diétely use violence when he was first
confronted by the sécurity guard._ He pushed him, punched him, and then
fled knowing that he had credit cards in his possession.

Based on the three different victims, Your Honor, the State is
going to ask you to impose a sentence of 19 to 48 on each Count. We're
ésking for Counts 1, 2, 3, 4, 8, 9, 10, 11 and 12 to run concurrent to each
other but consecutive to Counts 5, 7 and 13. So we're going to have those

three Counts run concurrent to each other but consecutive to the prior

the two groupings of Counts that | mentioned earlier. So basically what
we're asking for is three consecutive sentences, Your Honor, of 19 to 48.

THE COURT: Aliright. Thank you.

MR JONES: And just to make a record that is a consecutive sentence

for each of the victims who are named in this case.

THE COURT: Mr. George?

MR. GEORGE: Waell, his last felony convictionsrwere 2003, 2004. The
PSI recommends that all of these charges be run concurrent. | didn’t have
the benefit of being at the trial. | know that there was some issue as to how
many credit cards actually were in his possession. But | would ask that all of
these -- that the Court follow the recommendation of the PS! and run all of
the sentences concurrent and sentence him as the PS| recommends betw een
12 to 34 months. He's already done 12 months plrus a couple of weeks so |
would ask that he be given time served.

THE COURT. Mr. Sayedzada, did you want to say anything?

THE DEFENDANT: | would Jeéve it -- I'm just going to leave it at what |
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my attorney put it at right there.
THE COURT: All right. In accordahce with the jury verdict, as I've
indicated, you're being found guilty of 13 Counts. |
In addition to a $25 administrative assessment | am ordering that

you undergo genetic testing, pay $150 fee for that as well as a $3 DNA

|administrative assessment fee,

On Count 1 I'm sentencing you to 19 months mintimum, 48
months maximum in the Nevada Depértment of Corrections; Count 2, 19
months minimum, 48 months maximum in the Nevada Department of
Corrections; Count 3, 19 months minimum, 48 months maximum in the
Nevada Department of Corrections; Count 4, 19 months minimum, 48

months maximum in the Nevada Department of Corrections; Count 8, 19

|months minimum, 48 months maximum in the Nevada Department of

Corrections; Count 9, 19 months minimum, 48 months maximum in the
Nevada Department of Corrections; Count 10, 19 to 48: Count 11, 19 to
48, Count 12, 19 to 48. Those will all run concurrent with one another.

Count 5, 19 months minimum, 48 months maximum in the

Nevada Department of Corrections, That will run -- also not -- P'm sorry 5.

Seven, 19 months minimum, 48 months maximum in the Nevada
Departmient of Corrections; and Count 13, 19 months minimurh, 48 months
maximum. Those three will run concurrent with one another but consecutive
to Counts 1, 2, 3, 4, 8,9, 10, 11 and 12.

And Count 6, 19 months minimum, 48 months maximum in the
Nevada Department of Corrections. That will run concurrent with the other

Counts. Soit'll be an aggregate total of 38 minimum and -- what -- 96

?9?




10
11
12
13
14
15
186
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

maximum? Okay. And you'll receive credit for time served in this matter of
260 days.
MR. JONES: Actually, Your Honor -
THE COURT: Actually it'd be more.
MR. JONES: Yeah. It should be more. We've agreed on 365 days,
THE COURT: 365 days. Okay.
" MR JONES: Let me make sure that was right.
THE COURT: 3657
MR. JONES: it's -- sorry, Your Honor, it's 384
THE COURT: 384. AJl right. 384 days credit for time served. Good
luck with that, sir. _ |
THE DEFENDANT: [Inaudible] | can start my appeal any time’?
THE COURT: As soon as the judgment of conviction is Signed you
can; okay? |
. THE DEFENDANT: Al right.
[PROCEEDINGS CONCLUDED at 9:01 AM.]
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here are two types of evidence

; direct and circumstantial.

§ The law makes no distinction between the weight to be given | |

j cither direct or circumstantial evidence. Therefore, all of the §

____M_W_@Sambom in the case, including the circumstantial evidence

f should be considered by you in arriving at your verdict.




INSTRUCTION NO. o |
Any @ﬂmg who possesses a credit ama or debit card without consent of the r&%@ﬁﬂ
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~ INSTRUCTION NO. 11 |

d A credit card includes the number or other identifying
aomozw_uos o..m a credit oma or Q,@a: account.

! HZmHWGOHHOZ NO. 13§
B “Debit card” includes, without limitation, the number or |

"SRl other identifying physical or electronic momoa%ﬁos ofa .
SO | amw; oma
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~ INSTRUCTION NO. 15]

| A person is in possession of an article or object if]
jhe knowingly exercised control, dominion, or
I custody over it. _
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STRUCTION NO. H 7

In a criminal prosecution for Possession of a Credit Card Without Cardholder’s
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For you to draw this inference, its existence must, on all the evidence, be proved

bevond a reasonable doubt. -
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these rules of law.
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INSTRUCTION NO.__ 20
Although you are to consider only the evidence in the case in reaching a verdict, you

muist bring to the consideration of the evidence vour| and judgment

St i

as reasonable men and women. Thus, you are not limited solely to what you see and hear as

the E:_H_mmmmm testify. which you feel
are justified i the light of commeon experience, keeping in mind that such inferences should
m.oﬁ be based on speculation or guess.

A verdict may never be influenced by sympathy, prejudice or public opinion. Your

decision should be the product of sincere judgment and sound discretion i accordance with
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you may consider any statements made or acts done by that
)erson and all other facts and circumstances received in evidence

v*ich may aid in your determination of that person's knowledge or
ntent.
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THE COURT: Your witness, Mr. Jones.
MR. JONES: Thank you, Your Honor.
7 DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. JONES:
Q  Sir, where are you employed?
A With the Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Department.
Q | And how long have you been with the Las Vegas Metropolitan Police
Department? .
A Approximately eight years.
Q And in what capacity do you currently for the Las Vegas Metropolitan

Police Department?

A I'm currently assighed to patrol.

Q How long have you been with patroi?

A My entire career.

Q So you were employed in patrol on September 23™ of 20157

A Yes, | was. |

Q Now that morning were you dispatched to 1407 Santa Margarita?
A Yes, sir. | o
Q  Is that here within Clark County, Nevada?

A Yes,itis.

Q  And what was the nature of that call?

A Nature of the call was security call dispatch reference a subject who
was trespassing in an apartment complex and th'ey stated that he also had
possession of credit cards with someone’s name on it.

Q  Anddid you in fact arrive at 1407 Santa Margarita?
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A Yes, | did. |

Q And. when you arrived what did you find?

A | found security officer -- | believe it's Newton, he was oﬁ the east side
of the complex, and | also observed they had a suspect in cu‘stody-.
| Q S0 you saw Security Officer Newton with a suspect in custody?

A Yes, sir. |

Q Do you see that -- do you see that person in the courtroom tbday’?

A Yes, | do.

Q Can you please pdint at that person and describe an article of clothing
that they have on? . |

A | He's the gentleman éitti_ﬂg off to my left in a green dress shirt.

MR. JONES: Okay. Let the record reflect identification of the Defendant.

THE COURT: it will.
BY MR. JONES: | |

Q Now let's describe your contact with Security Officer Newton. Did you
in fact approach Security Officer Newton? o

A Yes, sir. k
And did you receive anything from Security Officer Newton?
| did.

And what in fact did you receive from Security Officer Newton?

> O > D

| received a tan purse,

MR. JONES: Your Honor, may | retrieve an exhibit?
THE COURT: Yes.

MR. JONES: May | approach the witness?

THE COURT: Yes.
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MR. JONES: For the record, Your Honor, I'm showing the wit -- the witness

what's been previously admitted as State Exhibit 21.

BY MR. JONES:
Q Sir, do you recognize that?
A Yes, | do.

Q  Whatis that?

A That's a tan purse which was handed to me from Security Officer |
Newton. |

Q Now once you received this purse from Security Officer Newton what
did you do with it?

A I looked at the coﬁtents inside the purse.

Q And when you looked at the contents did anything inside that purse
draw your attention?

A There were several credit cards inside that purse.

Q - And what did -- did you do anything with thoée credit cards?

A I inspecfed all the credit cards to see whose name was on the front of
the credit cards and who they were issued to.

Q And what did that inspection reveal?

A That they were all issued to a person by the name of Jamie Black.

Q Was anything else inéide that purse?

A | believe there were sunglasses inside the purse.

MR. JONES: Your Honor, may | retrieve the exhibit from the witness?

THE COURT: Yes.
BY MR. JONES:

Q 'S'o did you in fact log the -- the cards that you received from the purse?
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A Yes, I did.

Q Now after you went through the contents of the purse what did you do
next?

A | spoke with the Defendant.

Q Okay. Prior to speaking with the Defendant, did you advise Defendant
of anything? |

A Yes, | advised him of his Miranda rights.
And did the Defendant in fact say he understood his Miranda rights?
Yes, he did.
Okay. What, if anything, did you ask Defendant?

IS B e

I asked him where he -- if the purse belonged to him; he said it did not
belong to h|m I asked him where he found the purse and he stated that -- well, he
initially motioned with his head in | would say a westward direction, that he found it
down the street. And | asked him specifically where done the street and he would
not specify.

Q | Now when the Defendant motioned with his head down the street, what
direction did Defendant motion with his head?

A He was facing north and he motioned to his left which would be a
westward direction.

Q So that was the complete opposite direction of where you understood

the mmdents to have occurred’?

A Yes.

Q  Okay. So he said he refrieved it down the street?
A Yes, sir.

Q  Okay. What else did you ask him?
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A ~ lasked him if the credit cards inside the purse belonged to him?
Q  And what was his response? |

A Hé said they did not and --

Q Did you ask him anything else with respect to the credit cards?
A | asked him if he knew anyone by the name of Jamie Black and he

stated he did not.

Q Now at some point did you -- were you able to obtain other credit
cards? | |

A Yes, sir.

Q  And where in fact were those credit cards located?

A They were located near the area in which officer -- Security Officer
Newton stated he took Mr. Sayedzada intd custody. They were located on the
ground. |

Q And were you given those credit cards?

A Yes, | was.

MR. JONES: Your Honor, may | approach the witness?

THE COURT: Yes.
MR. JONES: At this time I'm showing the witness -- Your Honor, at this time

I'm showing the witness what had been prev:ously marked as exhibits -- State
proposed Exhibits 1 through 19,

THE COURT: Okay.
BY MR. JONES:

@ I'm going to ask -- take your time. | want you to look at each of those
exhibits individually.

A Okay.
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Did you in fact inspect State's proposed Exhibits 1 through 19, officer?
Yes, | did.

And did you recognize these proposed exhibits?

Yes, those are the cards that were found.

So these are the cards that were found?

> 0 > 0 > O

Yes, sir; they're photocopies,

Q Are the images that you just looked at, do they truly and accurately
reflect the cards that you found on September 23™ 20157
| A Yes, they do.

Q  Okay. Now --

MR. JONES: At this time, Youf Honor, I move to admit State’s proposed
Exhibits 1 through 19.

THE COURT: Any object -

MR. GASTON: No objection.

‘THE COURT: Okay. One through 19 will be admitted.

[STATE’S EXHIBITS 1 THROUGH 19 ADMITTED]

MR. JONES: Permission to publish, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Yes. _

MR. JONES: Your Honor, at this time I'm showing th.e jury what's been
marked as State’s now Exhibit.Number 1.
BY MR. JONES:

Q  And can -- what is this, Officer Reese?

A Those are photocopies of the credit cards which were found.

Q Now who in fact made this photocopy?

A ldid. |
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Q Now where did you make a photocopy of these cards?
A At Clark County Detention Center. _
Q So from the 19 -- excuse me, the 1407 Santa Margarita all the way to

the Clark County Detention Center these cards were in your -- in your custody and

care?
A Yes, sir.
Q Okay. And you did photocopy them there?
A Yes, sir. |
Q  And State’s now Exhibit Number 1 is four of these cards?
A Yes, sir. |

Q Now I'm showing you what's been marked as State’s Exhibit Number 2;
what is.this? |
A That's the back side of the cards which you just showed me.

Q - Showing you what's been marked as State’'s Exhibit Number 3; whatis”

this?
A That's more photocopies of the cards which | did at CCDC.
Q And State's Exhibit Number 47
A It's the reverse side of the previous cards.
Q  State's Exhibit Number 57
A Five more credit cards which 1 r_nade'copies of.
Q  And State’s Exhibit Number 67

A Those are the -- it's the back side of the previous cards which you just

showed me.
MR. JONES: Your Honor, may | approach the witness again?
THE COURT: Yes,
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MIR. JONES: And, Your Honor, for record, I'm handing the witness a -- a pen.

BY MR. JONES: |

Q. I'm showing the witness what's been admitted as State’s Exhibit
Number 1. On this exhibit can you please mark on each of the -- on -~ next to each
card where you found that particular card?

A Okay.

Q 'l’m showing you what's been marked as Stéte’s -- admitted Exhibit
Number 3 and it shows four cards. Can you please mark on that document where
you found each of those cards?

And Pm showing you what's been marked as State’s Exhibit Number 5.
Can you please mark where these were -- were all these found in the same
location? | |

A These all were found in the same location.

Q Okay. Can you just mark where they were found?

So now I'm showing the jury what's been marked as State's Exhibit
Number 1. You indicated that all of these cards were found on the ground; is that
correct? |
| A Yes, sir.
Q So that's a Visa ending in 0204, American Express énding in 2008, a

Visa card ending in 2877, and another Visa card were all found on the ground;

correct?
A Yes, sir.
Q I'm showing you what's been marked as State’s Exhibit Number 3.

Now these are split. Two were found on the ground and two were found in a purse.

Why are these on the same page?
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A | attempted to get all of the copies on the same page of the cards that |

{found in the purse, but | could only get five cards on one page.

Q Okay. So you in fact just split it up this way?

A Yes.

Q Okay. And so two of these cards were found on the ground and two
were found in the purse?

A Yes, sir.

Q Now I'm showing you what's been marked as State’s Exhibit Number 5
These are five credit cards; correct? |

A Yes, sir.

Q  And all of these were found in the purse?

A Yes, sir.

Q Now after you took photocopies of these credit cards what did you do
with them? |

A Other officers were able to locate the victims. So once | was finished a
Clark County Detention Center [ met the victims ét their home and documented
these items on a property report and released them back to the victims.

Q So you did document all of these items on a property report?

A Yes.

Q And eventually you did in fact return them to the victim?

A Yes.

Q Okay. Why did not impound these items?

A It's common practice for us when we have -- when we have a crime that

is involving stolen property that’s recently occurred. if we're able to locate a victim

‘then we will -- common practice is to document these items, in this case make
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of a rightful owner. In this case we were able to.
MR. JONES: Court's indulgence.

BY MR. JONES:

Q Now it's your testimony you returned the cards to the Black family;
correct?

A Yes,sir.

Q  What else did you return to the Black family?

A

| believe there was the purse; there was a pair of sunglasses, and |

believe there was a celi phone.

Q

A

And all of those items were in fact returned to the Black fémily?

Yes.

MR. JONES: At this time we'll pass the witness, Your Honor.
THE COURT: Cross?
MR. HOWELL: Thank you, Your Honor.

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. HOWELL:

Q
A
Q
A
Q

Good afternoon, Mr. Reese,

Hello, sir.

How are you?

qud, Sir,

Good. So | kind of want to start my questioning when you first arrived

and spoke with Officer Newton: do you understand?

A

Q

Yes, sir.

Thank you. He turned over a purse to you?
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Yes.

Okay. And at some point he also handed over credit cards that had

fallen on the ground?

A

Q

> 0 F D

-~ Yes.

He also handed over cell phones that had fallen on the ground?
Yes. | |
'Okay. At some point after that you searched the purse?

Yes.

Okay. And some of the items that you found in the purse were two pair

of sunglasses?

A

LI S s I |

Q

Yes, sir.

Credit cards in the name of Jamie Black?

Yes, sir.

Okay. You did not find Jamie Black's ID in the purse?
No, sir.

Did you find any car keys?

"No, sir.

You didn't find any cash?
No, sir.

Okay. Now you indicated that you spoke with Sayed after you read him|

Mmiranda warnings. Did you search him prior to speaking with him?

A

Q
A
Q

| read him Miranda prior to speaking with him.
I'm sorry. Before --
I'm sorry.

Did you search him?
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No -- no, sir. | read him Miranda before | searched him --
Okay.
-- before | searched the purse.

Sure. Okay. So I'm going to taik to you about your search on Sayed.

You didn’t find any credit cards on his person?

A

2 Or O r O T O

A
his person,

Q

A

Q
complex?

A

0O 0 P D

No, sir,
Okay. You didn't find Jamie Black’s ID on him?
No, sir.

You didn't find any -~ you didn't find $200 cash on him?

No, sir.

You didn't find any car keys on him?

No, sir.

Okay. Do you recall any property you did find on him?

[ believe | found -- on his person -- | don't believe he had any items on
| believe all the items | found were indeed inside the purse.

Okay. And then you spoke with Sayed?

Yes, sir.

Okay. And you questioned about why he was at the apartment

Yes, sir,

And he told you that he was taking a shortcut?
Yes. |

And you questioned him about the purse?
Yes.

Okay. And he told you that he found it?
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Newton --

A

Q
A

Q

A
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Yes, sir.

Okay. You'askec_i him if he knew there were cards in the purse?

Yes, sir.

He told you no?

Yes.

And you asked him if he knew the people who the cards belonged to?
Yes.

And he also told you no?

Yes.

Okay. Now the area where Sayed was taken into custody by Officer '_

Correct.
-- Is an apartment complex; right?
Yes, Sir.

Now to the best of your knowledge that apartment complex doesn't sell

No, sir.

Apartments maybe?

Yes.

Okay. It's not a store like Walmart?
No.

Okay. You don't know if the cards that were found in connection with

this case were used by Sayed?

A

Q

| don’t know that; nd.

Okay. So you're not aware of any fraudulent transactions?
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for certain that Sayed knew the cards were in the purse?

Black family on him?

intended on using the cards?

BY MR. JONES:

credit cards?

=) 3

A Notthat 'm aware of. |
Q Okay. Youdon't know where Sayed was going?

A No. |
Q Okay. And you don't know if Sayed was going to use the cards?
A No.

Q  Okay. And based on your conversation with Sayed, you can't even say

A Not 100 percent. He did not say he knew anything about the cards.
Q Right. He denied knowing anything them?
A Yes.

Q Okay. And again, he didn’t have any identification in the name of any of

A No, he did not.
Q Okay. Okay. So you can't say with any certaihty where Sayed

A No.
MR. HOWELL.: Okay. Court’s brief indulgence.
No further questions, Your Honor.
THE COURT: Further -- any further direct?
MR. JONES: Court’s indulgence, Your Honor.
THE COURT: Okay.
| | REDIRECT EXAMINATION

Q Officer, just to clarify, ybu did in fact ask Defendant if he knew about the
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Yes.
And what did Defendant say?
He said he didn't know about the credit cards.

Q But you asked him if the credit cards were his and what was his

response?

A He said they weren't his.

Q Okay. Ahd you asked -- you asked him if he knew of -- if he knows

anybody by the name of Jarhie Black and what was his answer?.

A He said he did not.

Now you indicated that you did in fact go to the Black residence?
Yes, sir.

How far away was the Black residence?

| would say_approximately two or three miles.

Okay. Is there a common street?

> 0 F O P O

I'do not recall exact street.

MR. JONES: No further questions.

MR. HOWELL: No, recross. Thank you, officer.

THE COURT: Okay. Officer, thank you for your testimony.
THE WITNESS: Thank you.

THE COURT: You can step down, you are excused.

MR. JONES: Your Honor, may we approach?

THE COURT: Yes.

[Bench conference -- not recorded]

THE COURT: Okay. Ladies and gentlemen, at this point in time we're going

to take our'overnight recess. The State has indicated their next withesses won't be

Rough Draft Transcript Day 1- 258




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23.

24 -

25

) B

a\)ailable until tomorrow, so I'm going to ask tha't. you be here by ten o'clock
tombrrow.

You are admonished not to converse amongst yourselves or with
anyone else on any subject connected with this trial; read, watch, or listen to any
report of or commentary on the trial by any person connected with this case, or by
any medium of information, including without limitation newspapers, television,
internet, radio. You're further admonished th to form or express any opinion on
any subject connected with this trial until the case is finally submitted to you.

_ Be here OUtSlde the courtroom at ten o'clock tomorrow. Do not come in
the courtroom We'll be at ease while the jury leaves the room; okay.
_ - [Outside the presence of the jury]

THE COURT: Okay. We're outside the presence of the jury.

I'd like -- do you need to make a record with respect to your objection
as to the shirt --

MR. GASTON: For two seconds.

THE COURT: -- the photo of Exhibit Number 207

MR. GASTON: Two seconds. .I just want to put both bench conferences on
the record.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. GASTON: The first bench conference | asked to approach specifically in
staﬁing Mr. Dickerson’s cross -- direct examination. | objected. He was standing
close to the jury -- actually right next to the jury, although outside the actual box
while he was asking his questions. | objected as to misconduct. | found that to be --
| -- you know, | argued that was inappropriate. The Court indicated that, A, he didn't

find it inappropriate; B, | have the same opportunity if | wanted to do so in my cross-
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to Exhibit 20 on irrelevant and unfairly prejudicial -- the unfair‘prejudfce is
substantially -- substantiaity autweighs the probative value. The district attorney
indicated that it wasn't going to publish Exhibit 20, but it was going to move to admit

it, so i objected to it being admitted. The Court overruled my objection and allowed

it to be admitted.

it to the jury. And specifically what the district attorney did is he published the photo
of Exhibit 20 to the jury and showed it to the witness, and then he went on to the
next photo, which is a photo of the purse, and published that to the jury. Howe\)er
when he published the second photo to the jury he did exactly the kind of thing that |
was concerned about when | objected at the bench, is he showed the photo while
simultaneously showing a photo of the purse while simultaneously showing the

photo --

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. GASTON: If that's a correct statement of the bench conference.
THE COURT: Do you concur with that, Mr. Dickerson?

MR. DICKERSON: | would, Your Hondr.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. GASTON: The next benc_h conference we -- we approached. | objected

Given that it was admitted, the district attorney did then actually publish

MR. JONES: Well -- I'm sorry.
THE COURT: Let -- let him finish because that's correct; he did.
MR. GASTON: While simu!taneously showing the photo of the Defendant.
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So -- and then he actually evén with hié hands scooted over the photo of the purse
so that the jury and the witness could more clearly see the photo of the purse, while |
still he was very careful to not. obscure the photo of the Defendant. And so for a
period of time during the questioning and while has doing his direct examination
there was a photo of rﬁy client standing right next to the photo of the purse. And
that's the kind of -- absolutely no probative value and the unfair prejudice | was
worried about at the behch. And in fact it's direct contradiction to what Mr,
Dickerson stated his intent was to the Court‘ which is not -- he just wanted to move it
intd -- admit it into evidence. He specifically said I'm not intending to publish it and
then he went ahead and did exacfly that. |

THE COURT: Well, he asked. He asked before he published.

MR. GASTON: He did. He did.

' THE COURT: Okay. Go ahead. Do you want to respond?
MR, DICKERSQN: Yes, Your Honor.
| did ask before | published and Your Honor granted me the right to

publish that. With that the defense counsel did not object when | published both
images, including the images side-by-side. 1would also not.e for the record that the
image of the Defendant was quite obscured by the lighting anyway. It was very hard
to see if at all. Given that, Your Honor, and givén that there was no objection at the
time of the publishing | didn't see anything wrong with that.

MR. GASTON: Does the Court want me to respond --

THE COURT: Mr. Dick --

MR. GASTON: Oh, go ahead. I'm sorry.

THE COURT: Mr. Dickerson, Mr. Gatson, those are -- those are evidence

that's going to be presented to the jury. You publish them merely during the portion
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that you have the individual on the witness stand. | don't see any prejudice with it.
f've already indicated that it was admissible. | do find that it is relevant based on the
description of the witness and what he was wearing, and how he had |t concealed.
And matter of fact he even did draw on his neck on how the individual had the --
how your Defendant -- how your client had this purse on underneath his shirt. So |
understand your record and that's fine.
Anything further?
MR. JONES: Not from the State, Your Honor.
MR. GASTON: | have a question about jury instructions.
THE COURT: Okay.
MR. GASTON: So | know the State has given me a copy of their jury
instructions. 1 think they emailed it to me -- or going to email it to me --
MR. JONES: I've not. My -- his - his address won't come to my phone but I
will email him a PDF of my jury instructions this afternoon.
MR. GASTON: And I believe he has filed a copy --
THE COURT: Do --
MR. GASTON: I'm sorry.
'THE COURT: [ do.
i _ Mr. Jones, did you prepare any of these without -~ without the citations?
MR. JONES: | have them in my office that | can send to the Court.
THE 'COURT: Yeah, send me a copy without citations as well.
And | don’t know if this will be the right time to do this. Since we have,
do you want me to admonish your client;, give him an opportunity to think about this
aver the n.ight -- overnight on whether or not he's going to testify?

MR. GASTON: If the Court wishes.
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THE COURT: Okay.

Mr. Sayedzada, | -- you know, | apologize ahead of time in my
pronunciation of your name. 1 just - | don’t know if I'm pronouhcing itright. I've
tried to follow what you indicated, but please don't take any offense to that. I'm not
trying to belittle you or anything like that. [ just -- f don’t -- Sayedzada?

THE DEFENDANT: Correct. ,

THE COURT: Okay. Sir, under the Constitution of the United States, and
under the Constitution of the State of Nevada, you cannot be compelled to ‘testify'in
this case; do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT: [Indiscernibie.] -

THE COURT: Is that a yes?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes. |

THE COURT: Okay. You may at your own request give up that right and
take the witness stand and testify. If you do, you'll be subject to cross-examination
by the deputy district attorney and anything that‘ you may say, be it on direct or
cross-examination, will be subject to fair comment when the deputy district attorney
speaks to the jury in his final argument; do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT: Correct. | do. |

THE COURT: If you choose not to testify the Court will not permit the deputy
district attorney to make any comments to the jury because you have not testi‘fi.ed;
do you understand that? _

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, | do.

THE COURT: Also, if you elect not to testify the Court will instruct the jury,
but only if 'your attorney specifically requests me to do so, that the law does not

compel a defendant in a criminal case to take the stand and testify, and no
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Presumption may be raised, and no inference of any kind may be drawn from the ,

failure of a defendant to testify. Do you have'any questions regarding your rights?
THE DEFENDANT: No, | don't,

16
17
18

19 THE COURT: And, State, you didn't pfovide = You didn't provide 3 copy of

20 {'the stock one to me; do you have one?

21 MR. JONES: I'm sure tdo. I don’t know - | can't remember if that’s in there

or not, Your Honor, | apologize.

23 THE COURT: It's not, I --it's not. |looked for it,

24 MR. GASTON: We are going to be asking -- most likely we are going to be

25 || asking. I'provide -- p)j provide g copy.
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THE COURT: Okay. I ask however if you get a copy of the 'State’s and
you're presenting a copy -- something to the Court, follow the same font --

MR. GASTON: Sure. |

THE COURT: -- all fight?

MR. GASTON: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay. All right,

MR. JONES: Just one question though. When will be receiving defense’s --

don't want this to be 3 situation --

THE COURT: He said he'’s going give them to you for tonight.

MR. GASTON: | don’t want to super promise a time, but it will be tonight.

MR. JONES: Okay. Aslong as it's tonight.
MR. HOWELL: it will be tonight.
MR. JONES: | just don't want to receive them‘at 9:55 tomorrow and be
expected to argue in chambers, so --
THE COURT: Okay.
MR. JONES: Okay. Thank you, Your Honor,
THE CO‘URTI: That's fair. All right.
MR. GASTON: Do you want us to be here at ten tomorrow --
- THE COURT: Yeah.
MR. GASTON: --orjust be a little early?
‘THE COURT: Well --
MR. HOWELL: I'll be here at 8:30.
THE COURT: Yeah, you'rg --
MR. GASTON: | think there's a chance we can submit the case --
THE COURT: Iknow. That's what 'm thinking --
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MR. GASTON: .. I mean, those witnesses aren't going to take any time.

THE COURT: .. is we could probably settle jury instructions if you Come - try

to come about 3 half hoyr early because | think my calendar -- you know, | don't

THE COURT- Yeah.
MR. GASTON: - two Sentencings, but ] be here at 9:30 if the ..
THE COURT CLERK: It's just because it's pretrial conference.

THE COURT: 1t's a1 pretrial conference stuff; yeah.
10

Okay. So if you could be here by 9:3¢ tomorrow maybe we can get the

jury instructions done and -- |

MR. GASTON: Thank you, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay. Anything else?

MR. GASTON: That's it,

MR. JONES: That's it, Your Honor. Thank ydu.

THE COURT: All right. Have 3 good evening: okay.

MR. DICKERSON: Thank you. your Honor.

THE COURT: We're off the recorq.

| [Proceedings concluded at 4:25 p.m.]
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WEDNESDAY, MARCH 23, 2016 AT 10:34 A.M.

[Outside the presence of the jury]

- THE COURT: Okay. We're on the record in State of Nevada versus
Sayedbashe Sayedzada,‘ C310000. We're outside the presence of the jury. Is the
State ready to proceed? ' |

MR. JONES: The State is ready, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Are you ready to proceed?

MR. GASTON: We are. Do you want us to go ahead and put the jury
instructions and --

THE COURT: No; we'll do it after we --

MR. GASTON: Before closing after the --

THE COURT: Right; mm-hmm.

MR. JONES: And, Your Honor, | did - | now have one but | did have two
witnesses in here. | was -- that they leave. Do you want me to do that prior to the
jury coming in?

THE COURT: Yeah, just let them go outside. |

MR. GASTON: Your Honor, for scheduling purposes -~ | don't know if this will
be amenable to fhe Court, but what we were thinking is about doing the three
witnesses, the Stete would rest, we would take a break. The jury would be released
for lunch, do the jury instructions issue, have lunch, come back and close, if that
works for the Court.

MR. JONES: It should go - the three witnesses we have, Your Honor, should
go pfetty quick. We're hoping to get them done within an hour.

THE COURT: Okay.
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| MR. JONES: And quite frankly depending on cross, it could go much faster
than that.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. JONES: Thejury instructions might take a while. May | retrieve the
exhibits?- |

THE COURT: What's that?

MR. JONES: May!--

THE COURT: Yes.

[Inside the presence of the jury]

THE COURT: Okay. This is the continuation of the jury trial in case number
C310000, State of Nevada versus Sayedbashe Sayedzada. I'd like the record to
reflect the presence of the Defendant and his counsel as well as State as their
counsel. When you hear your name, please answer that you're here.

[The Court calls the roll of the jury panel]

THE COURT: Will the parties stipulate to the presence of the jury?

MR. JONES: We will, Your Honor.

MR. GASTON: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay. Before we took a break the State was still in their case
in chief, do you have any further witnesses?

MR. JONES: The State does, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Call .your next witness.

MR. JONES: The next witness is Michael Black.

Sayedbashe Sayedzada your first and last name for the record.
THE WITNESS: Michael Thomas Black, M--C-H-A-E-L B-L-A-C-K.
THE COURT: Your witness, Mr. Jones. -
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MR. JONES: Thank you, Your Honor.
DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. JONES:
Sir, do you know a Jamie Black?
Yes.
How do you know Jamie Black?
My daughter.
She’s your daughter. And what about Lori Black?

My wife.

o r O P O >

| want to turn your attention to September 23" of 2016. Did you in fact
on that date possess a Visa card --- had a Visa card in your name ending in 02047
A Yes.
MR. JONES: Okay. Your Honor, may | approach the witness?
THE COURT: VYes.
BY MR. JONES:

Q I'm showing the witness what's been admitted as State’s proposed

Exhibit number 12. Sir, do you recognize what's depicted in that picture?

A Yes.

Q  Whatis depicted in that picture?

A Of a Visa credit card.

Q  Okay. And whose name is that card in?
| A Michael T. Black, mine.

Q Now this card also has under it the name Beaver Dam Lodge; what is

Beaver Dam Lodge?

A That's a business that we own.
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A
Q

permission to have this card?

A

0 P O >

Q

of Sayedbashe Sayedzada permission to use this card?

A
Q

an individual by the name of Sayedbashe Sayedzada?

A

MR. JONES: Court's indulgence. No further questions, Your Honor.

) )
And when you say we, who is we?

My wife and I.

Okay. So, you and your wife own Beaver Dam Lodge?

Yes.

Okay. And this card is issued in your name before Beaver Dam Lodge?
Yes.

Okay. Who had permission to add this card on them on September 23™

Jamie Black, my daughter.

Okay. Now what about Lori Black; would Lbri Black have had

Yes.

Okay. Infact, Lori Black is the sig-nafure that's on the back; correct?
Yes.

Okay. What does -- what do you, Jamie and Lori use this card for?
To purchase materials for the job, for the business.

And that would be the lodge that’s on the card?

Yes.

Now did you give on September 23" of 2015 an individual by the name

No.
Okay. And prior to that date, September 23™ 2015, did you in fact know

No.
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step down; you're excused. Call your next witness.

clerk.

name, speltling your first and last name for the record.

) —

THE COURT: Cross. o
MR. HOWELL: No questions, Your Honor.
THE COURT: All right. Okay. Mr. Biack, thanks for your testimony. You can

MR. JONES: The State calls Lori Black, Your Honor.
LORI BLACK
[having been called as a witness and being first duly sworn, testified as follows:]

THE COURT MARSHAL: Remain standing and raise your hand and face the
THE COURT CLERK: Thank you. Please be seated. Please state your full

THE WITNESS: Lori Jo Black, L-O-R-| B-L-A-C-K.

THE COURT: Your witness, Mr. Jones.

MR. JONES: Thank you, Your Honor.

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. JONES:

Q Ms. Black, do you know a Michae! Black?
Yes. |
How do you know Michael Black?
He's my husband.

And do you know a Jamie Black?

» O X O »

Yes; she's my daughter.
MR. JONES: Your Honor, may | approach the witness?
THE COURT: Yes.

BY MR. JONES:
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Q  Your Honor, I'm showing the‘witnéss what's been marked as State's
Exhibit number 11; do you recognize what's depicted in this exhibit?
A Yes, it's our credit card number, our company ¢redit cards.
And is that card in fact in your name?
Yes, itis. |
And who has in fact signed for that card on the back?

| did.

o0 X D

Q Okay. I'm showing the witness what's been marked as State’s Exhibit
number 13; do you recbgnize this exhibit?
A Yes. |
What is depicted in this exhibit?
it's my credit card.
.Okay. And is the credit card in your name?
Yes, itis. |
And who has in fact signed the back of that credit card?

| did.’

> 0 > P T D

Q  And showing the witness what’s been admitted as State's Exhibit
number 19. Ms. Black, do you recognize that exhibit?

A Mm-hmm.

Q What is that exhibit?

THE COURT: Is that a yes, ma’am?

THE WITNESS: Yes.

THE COURT: Okay.

THE WJTNIESS: It's my credit card.
BY MR. JONES:
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Okay. And is that card in fact in your name?
Yes, itis.

And have you in fact signed the back of that card?

> 0 P D

Yes.

Q Qkay. So, Your Honor, also I'm showing the witnesé what's been
marked as State’s Exhibit number 1 1, do you recognize what’s dep'icted in Exhibit
number 127 '

A Yes.

What is in this exhibit?

It's a company credit card, our other company credit card.

Q
A
- Q  Now whose name is this card in?
A Itsinmy husband’s.

Q  Okay. But who has signed the back of this card?

A I did. |

Q Okay. Now why did you sign the back of the card with your husband's
name on it? |

A | don't know. It's our company credit Card.

Q Okay. It's for company purposes? |

A It is.

Q Okay. | want to turn your attention to September 23™ of 2015. Did
Jamie Black have permission to possess these cards depicted in Exhibits 12,13, 11
and 197 |

A Yes.

Q Did you give an individual by the name of Sayedbashe Sayedzada

permission to use any of those cards?
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A No, | did not.
Q Okay. And prior to September 23™ 2015, did you in fact know an
individual by the name of Sayedbashe Sayedzada?
A No, | did not.
MR. JONES: No further questions.
THE COURT: Cross.
MR. HOWELL: No questions, Your Honor.
THE COURT: Okay. Ms. Black, thank you so much for your testimony.,
THE WITNESS: Thank you. |
THE COURT: Step down, you’rer excused; okay.
Call your next witness.
MR. DICKERSON: The next witness is going to be Jamie Black.
THE COURT MARSHAL: Remain standing, raise your right hand and face
the clerk over here. =
JAMIE BLACK
[having been called as a witness and being first duly sworn, testified as follows:]
~ THE COURT CLERK: Thank you. Please be seated. Please state your full
name, spelling your first and last name for the record.
THE WITNESS: Jamie Lee Black, J-A-M-I-E L-E-E B-L-A-C-K.
THE COURT: Your witness, Mr. Dickerson.
MR. DIC_KERSON: Thank you, Your Honor.
DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. DICKERSON:
- Q Ms. Black, who were Michael and Lori Black?

A My father and mother,
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A

we have in Mesquite.

Q

> 0 r

rooms.

o DO

around that certain time.

Q
A
Q
A

some of my daughter’s stuff and that's when --

Q
A

car and left my things in my car.

Q
A

- Do you carry any other cards in your parent's name?

y 9

And what do you do for a living?
| work at Beaver Dam Lodge for my mom.
Is pa'rt of that job do you carry financial resources for the company?

| carry a business card for Beaver Dam Lodge and for another company

No -- well not now.
Was there a time before when you did?

Yeah. | did have a --| believe it was a Hilton credit card for booking

And when was that?
September -- like around September 20" is when | got those.
So, around September 20" 22™, 2015, where were you living?

| was -- I'm living in Mesquite and Vegas part-time, but | was in Vegas

Were you in Las Vegas on September 227 20157
Yes, | was.
And were you staying here that evening?

Well | was on my way to Mesquite and came back because | had forgot

I'm sorry.. Go ahead.

And that's when | -- she was sleeping. So, | just went -- got out of my

How old is your daughter?

Five.
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She rides in a car seat still?

Yeah.

So, she was in your car that evening?

Yes, she was.

You said that you were on your way to Mesquite. |
Mesquite.

And what happened? What caused you to come back home?
We forgot some of her stuff - some of her school stuff
S0, when you got home, what time was it?

Around -- | would say 11:30.

And what did you do?

‘We pulled in and | parked my car. it was late, she was sleeping, so |

just jumped out the car went inside and went to bed.

Q

>0 P O r O Fr O ¥

This neighborhood that you live in, is there -- is it gated?
Itis gated and it's ali -- the only people living there is family.
So, you know everybody that lives in the neighborhood?
Yes.

You have walls around the neighborhood?

Mm-hmm.

Are they pretty tail?

_ Yeah.

So, you took your daughter inside?

Mm—hmm.

THE COURT: Is that a yes, ma'am?
THE WITNESS: Yes.
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THE COURT: Ma'am, you can't say mm-hmm or uh;huh because | don't
know what that means. Okay. |

THE WITNESS: Sorry.

THE COURT: All right.
BY MR. DICKERSON:

Q Was that at 11:30 at night; is that what you said?

A Yes. _

Q Was she sleeping?

A She was sleeping.

Q  And when you took her inside did you lock the car doors?

A Ididn't. | -- being where we live | just ﬁg'ured it was safe to -- we never

really had problems with that before so --

Q So, what did you keep in your car?

A My purse was in there, my keys, my wallet, and some of my daughter's
like toys, a [aptop and like a portable DVD player, |

Q  That she plays with? '

A Yes. |

Q Let's talk about the items that were in your purse; what did you have in

A My wallet, my keys, and credit cards and money. |
Q So you said you had your wallet, you had keys. And were the credit

cards and money within your wallet?

A Some of the credit cards. The expired ones were in my center console
and the other ones were in my wallet in my purse.

Q How did you keep them in your wallet?
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In the little pockets. The business ones are on one side and my

personal ones are on the other.

>o>o>'o>o>o>o>o>o

You said you had some cash in your wallet?

Yes.

About how much?

Like a hundred dollars.

But you're not sure?

I'm not a hundred percent sure.

Would you say that it would be more or less than a hundred?
I'usually carry like a hundred doliars cash justin case of emergencies.
And did you have an ID in there? -

Yes. |

Did you have anything else, grocery cards or anything?

Yeah.

What was that?

Like a Vons grocery card, fuel pointé things.

You said‘you also had some kid's stuffin the car; is that right?

There was the -- like the DVD player and some play cell phones and

stuff like that.

The cell phones that you had, what are they?

- They were just old cell phones that she had like piayed with; they didn't

Do you recall what kind of cell phones they are?
No.

Did you have anything else in the car, sunglasses or anything?
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mine so -~

Q

- | —

There was sunglasses, but some that the officer brought back were not

We'll chat about that in a second. So, at some point in time you were

contacted by police officers?

A

My sister had woken me up saying that there was a officer there. |

didn't - | had no idea that it happened.

Q

> 0 T O X O rFr o T O >

Was this on the morning of September 23 20157

Yes.

About what time?

Eight-thirty, 9 o’clock. _ |

And atrthis.point in time did you learn anything that had happened?
| didn’t -- | learned that -- |
Specifically about your vehicle.

| didn’t know anything happened until he told me.

Did you happen to look in your vehicle at that point in time?

" Yeah.

And did you notice whether anything was missing?

Weli he -- the officer said not to go in my --

- MR. HOWELL: Objection.
THE WITNESS: --in my car yet.
THE COURT: So -- hold on, hold on, hold on.
MR. HOWELL: Hearsay, Your Honor.
THE COURT: Sustained.
BY MR. DICKERSON:

Q

At some point in time did you go in your car and realize that you were
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missing some items?

A Yeah.

Q And what was missing?

A My pukée and everything from my center console was taken out. So,
the credit cards were gone out of there and then my daughter's stuff was gone too.

Q And that included the cell phones?

A Mm-hmm.

THE COURT: Is that a yes, ma’am?

THE WITNESS: Yes.
BY MR. DICKERSON:

Q Now at some point in time did another police officer come up to your
house? |

A There was two; one came in the morning and then one brought.my
items back later in the day.

Q And what did he bring back; what did you identify as yours?

A My pursé and some of my credit cards and one of my pay stubs.

Q S0, you got yo.ur purse back; is that correct?

A Yes. |

MR. DICKERSON: I'm going to show you what's been previously admitted as
State’'s Exhibit 21. Permission to approach, Your Honor. |

THE COURT: Yes.
BY MR. DICKERSON:

Q Do you recognize what's depicted in State’s Exhibit 217

A Yes. -«

Q  How do you recognize it? What is it?
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MR. DICKERSON: Permission to publish, Your Honor?
THE COURT: Yes.
||BY MR. DICKERSON:

Q
A
Q
A
Q

morning on the 237

A

IS oI )

back?

MR. DICKERSON: Permission to approach, Your Honor.
 THE COURT: VYes.
BY MR. DICKERSON:

~ Yes.

Is this the purse that you had left in your car on the evening of the 2297

OO r O >

9 O

My purse.

Publishing State's Exhibit 21. This is, as you said, your purse?

Yes.

This is the purse that you were -- you had returned to you on the

Yes. _

And this is the purse where you kept the items that you testified to?
Yes. |

Specifically your wallet?

And keys, my car keys, house keys.

And -- so you identified this as bei'ng your purse; what else did you get

That was -~ that and my wallet and some of the cards and the phones.
Sd, you got how many phones back?

| believe there was two.

And you got several credit cards back; is that correct?

Yeah.
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Q I'm showing you what's already been admitted, first as State's Exhibit 1
through 5 - I'm sorry -- 1 through 6. If you would just please look through those and
tell me if you recognize those.

A | recognize all of them.

Q Okay. And how do you recognize them? What do you recognize them
as?

A My credit cards.

Q Il take those back. I'm going to now show you what's been previously
admitted as State’s Exhibit 7 through 19; do you also recognize those?

A Yes. |

Q And what do you recognize State’s Exhibit 7 through 19 to be?

A Credit cards.

Q Are they the same credit cards fhat you saw in the othe'r exhibits? Are
these your credit cards? |

A Yes.

Q  And we'll just go thru 'em. State’s Exhibit 7, do you recognize this to be

City Bank Mastercard in your name?

A Yes.
Q Bearing number 99777
A Yes,

Q  State’s Exhibit 18. l’m sorry. Go back real quick to State’s Exhibit 7.
On September 23" 2015, did you give an individual by the name of Sayedbashe
Sayedzada permission to possess this credit card?

A No. |

Q State’s Exhibit 8; do you recognize this?
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Yes.
As a Visa card in your name?
Yes.

Bearing number last four 08497

> 0 > p >

Yes.

Q . And on September 23 2015, did you give an individual by the name of
Sayedbashe Sayedzada permission to possess this card?

A No.

Q Showing you State’s Exhibit 9; do you recognize this item to be g
Target red card bearing last four 28777 '
Yes.

And this is also in your name?

> O >

Yes.

Q And on September 23" 2015 did you give an individual by the name of
Sayedbashe Sayedzada permission to possess this card?

A No.

Q Showing you what's been admitted as State’ s Exhibit 10 do you
recogmze this to be a card in your name?

A Yes.

Q Specifically a Visa debit card bearing last four 9153?

A Mm-hmm, yes.

Q And on September 23™ 2015 did you give an individual by the name of
Sayedbashe Sayedzada permission to possess this card?

A No. _

Q Showing you what's been admitted as State’s Exhibit 11; do you
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A Yes

Q And Specifically it's g Welis Fargo Visa card bearing last four 49677
A Yes.

Q  And was this card in your possession on September 227 2015
A It was

Bearing last four 02047
14 Yes,
15 And were you in POsSsession of this carg

on September 227 201 57
Yes.

186

17 Q  On September 232015, did You give an individyg by the name of

Sayedbashe Sayedzada permission tg POssess this carg?

A No.-
Q Showing you what's been admitted as State $ Exhibit 13; do you
21 |Irecognize this to be 3 Vigg debit card in fhe Name of your mother Lori Black?
22 A Yesg
23 Q  And that's bearing last four 111 77?
24 A Yes.
25 Q

Did you have POssession of this carg on September 22™ 20157
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A Yes.

Q And on September 23", 2015 did you given an individual by the name
of Sayedbashe Sayedzada permission to possess this card?

A No.

Q Showing you what's been admitted as State’'s Exhibit 14; do you

recognize this to be a debit card, a Visa debit card in your name?

A Yes.
Q And that’s bearing last four 66097
A Yes.

Q Did you give an individual by the name of Sayedbashe Sayedzada
permission to possess this card on September 23 20157

A No.

Q  Showing you what's been admitted as State’s Exhibit 15; do you

recognize this as a Amex credit card in your name?

A Yes.
Q Bearing last four 10257
A Yes.

Q And on September 23™ 2015 did an individual by the name of
Sayedbashe Sayedzada have permission to _pdssess this éard?

A No.

Q  Showing you what's been admitted as State’s Exhibit 18; do you

recognize this to be a Visa debit card in your name?

A Yes.
Q Bearing last four 10267
A Yes.
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Q And on September 23™ 2015 did an individual b'y the name of
Sayedbashe Sayedzada have permission to posses's this card?
A No |
Q Showing you what's been admitted as State’s Exhibit 17; do you

recognize this as a Best Buy Mastercard in your name?

A Yes.
Q  And this is bearing last four 78497
A Yes.

Q On September 23™ 2015 did Sayedbashe Sayedzada have permission
to possess this card?

A No. |

Q Showing you what's been admitted as State’s Exhibit 18; do you

recognize this as a Wells Fargo ATM card --

A
-- in your name?

A Yes.

Q And this is bearing last four 16517

A Yes.

Q Did Sayedbashe Sayedzadé have permission to possess this card on
September 23™ 20157

A No.

Q And, finally, showing you what’s been admitted as State’s Exhibit 19; do
you recognize this to be a Hilton American Express card in your mother Lori Black’s
name?

A Yes.

Rough Draft Transcript Dray 2-23

682




10
11
12
13
14
15

16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

card on September 22™ 20157

Q Bearing last four 20067
A Yes.
Q And did Sayedbashe Sayedzada - first did you have possession of this

A Yes. _

Q And on September 23™ 2015, did Sayedbashe Sayedzada have
permission to have possession of this card?

A No.

Q Did anybody other than yourself, your mother or your father have
permission to possess any of the cards that | just showed you on either September
22" 2015 or September 23™ 20157

A No.

Now you got all these cards back that | just showed you?
Some -- most of them, yes.

And these were given to you by Officer Reese?

Yes.

That was on the morning of September 23" 20157

Well it was later in the afternoon.

You said that he had other items with him?

Yes.

What items did he also bring?

There was another pUrSe and some sunglasses that were not mine.
What did that other purse look like?

{ don't remember.

o OF o0 T O X O r oo P O P OO

And how many sunglasses?
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cards?

A

my wallet in my purse.

Q

our wallet?

A

ones were in my wallfet, the good ones.

Q

> 0 r QO >

MR. DICKERSON: Pass the witness.
THE COURT: Cross.
MR. HOWELL: Thank you, Your Honor.

BY MR. HOWELL:

Q

The expired ones were in my center console and the new ones were in

Two.

And Officer Reese brought those with him to your house?
Yes.

And you idéntified those as not being your property?
Yes.

Okay. Justto be clear, one last time, tell me where you kept the credit

And all the cards that you didn’t deem as being expired were placed in
The ones that were expired were in the center console and the other

Into those slots in your wallet?

Y‘es.r

And then your wallet was in your purse?
fn my purse.

And that’s Where you last séw it?

Yes.

CROSS-EXAMINATION

Good morning, Ms. Black.
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A
Q

direct that | just want to get a little clarification on. Okay. You indicated that you got

your purse back from Officer Reese at some point in time on September 232

A

oo r o O

get my ID back, and | didn’t get a couple of my like rewards just Vons cards and

some money that was in my wallet.

Q
A

Q

around a hundred dollars?

A

0O r O o0 >

" No.

Good morning.

| just want to go over a couple things that | think maybe we covered on

Yes. |

And you also received some of the items that were taken back?
Yes.

Okay. But you didn't get back everything?

No.

Okay. What didn't you get back, if you know specifically?

| did not get my keys back, my car keys and my house keys; | did not

Okay. So, you didn't get your Nevada driver's license back?
No. |
Okay. And you didn’t get your cash back. [ think you said it was

Yeah.
Okay. You didn’'t get your vehicle keys back?

You didn't get some of your rewards cards back?
Yeah.' |

Did you mention that there were toys that were taken?
Yes. |

You didn't get those back either?
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A No. .

MR. HOWELL: Okay. Court's indulgenee. All right. No further questiens.
Thank you, Ms. Black. |

THE COURT: All right. Thank you, Mr. Howell. Any redirect?

MR. DICKERSON: Briefly, Your Honor.

REDIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. DICKERSON:

Q When you said that you didn't get some items back, you're referring to
getting those items back on September 23™ 2015 that morning?

A Yes.

Q  Because isn't it true that - did you getitems back later on?

A | -- someone had mailed - someone had found my driver’s license and
sent it to me in the mail. And then someone found rhy Triple A card and sent it to
the person that does, | guess, their Triple A and she mailed me some of my stuff
back as well. |

MR. DICKERSON: All right. Thank you.

- THE COURT: Any recross?
MR. HOWELL: Court's indulgence.
THE COURT: Okay.
| RECROSS EXAMINATION
BY MR. HOWELL:

Q One question. About how long after September 23" 2015 did those
items get ret'urned to you?

A One was mailed maybe three or four days later | got it and then the

other one | got maybe a week later.
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- But you still didn’t get our keys back?
No. |
And you also didn’t get your cash back?
No.
And you didn't get your toys back?
No. .
MR. HOWELL: Your kid’s toys. S_ofry. I have no further questions.
THE COURT: Thank you,_Mr. Howell. Anyredirect.
MR. DICKERSON: Nothing from the State, Your Honor.
THE COURT: All right. Okay, Ms. Black, thank you so much for your

r O T oD r oo

testimony. You can step down and you're excused.

THE WITNESS: Thank you.

THE COURT: State, you have another witness.

MR. JONES: Court’s indulgence, Your Honor,

THE COURT: .Okay.

MR. JONES: Your Honor, | just would like to confirm with the clerk that
State's Exhibits 1 through 22 have all been admitted. |

THE COURT CLERK: Yes.

THE COURT: They have been.

MR. JONES: At this time, Your Honor, the State rests.

\ [State rests]
THE COURT: Okay. The State has rested. Mr. Gaston.
MR. GASTON: Your Honor, the Defense rests at this time.
[Defense rests]

THE COURT: Okay. Ladies and gentlemen, it's ten after eleven. I'm going
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to give you about an hour and 15 minutes for lunch, and when we return I'm going to
instruct you on the law and the State and the Defense, if they choose, will give
closing arguments and then | suspect you'll probably have the case probably some
time shortly after that.

In the meantime, you are admonished not to talk or converse amongst
yourselves or with anyone else on any subject connected with this trial or read,
watch or listen to any report or commentary on the trial or any person connected
with this trial by any medium of information, including without limitation, newspapers,
television, internet or radio or form‘or express any opinion on any subject connected
with this trial until the case is finally submitted to you.
it's ten after now. Why don't you be back at 12:30 and then we'll get
started. Okay. | | |

[Outside the presence of the jury]

THE COURT: Okay. We're outside the presence of the jury. You up to settle

on jury instructions now so we can get it done. Just hang on. Let me go get them.
| [Off the record at 11:09 a.m.] |
[Proceedings resumed at 11:27 é.m.] ' |

THE COURT: Okay. We're back on the record in the State of Nevada versus
Sayedbashe Sayedzada, C310000. This is the time set for settling instructions. I've
handed copies of the instructions that we went over previously. Does the State
have a copy of Instructions 1 through 24 proposed by the Court?

MR. JONES: The State does, Your Honor. |

THE COURT: Does the State object to any -- giving of"these instructions?

MR. JONES: | just started going through them now, Your Honor, but

everything appears to be in order.
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THE COURT: Okay. Mr. Jones, did you have a chance to look at those?

MR. JONES: | have, Your Honor, and everything appears to be in order.

THE COURT: Allright. Is there any additional instructions that you propose?

MR. JONES: No, Your Honor.

- THE COURT: s the Defendant familiar with Instructions through 247?

MR. GASTON: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: And do you obj'ect to any of these?

MR. GASTON: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay. Which ones do you object to?

MR. GASTON: Court's indulgence. On Instruction number 3, line 9, it réads:
Facts of the case and determine whether or not the Defendant is guilty of the
offense charged. |

THE COURT: Yes.

MR. GASTON: We object to that Iangua.ge and we propose a change to --
instead of whether or not the Defendant is'guilty, it should be whether the Defendant
is guilty or‘nof guilty. |

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. GASTON: The rationale for that is that the language as proposed white,
yes, it does give the alternative yes or no, it's all proposed in the language of
Defendant is guilty as opposed to using more neutral language whether the
Defendant is guilty or not guilty. Both options are equal and it doesn’t seem like the
instruction is based on one or the other.

THE COURT: Okay. This ihstruction is how I'm going to give it. | believe it
satisfies your concern. So, you're -- understand it's noted but I'm overruling that.

Okay. Anything further?
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MR. GASTON: Yes, Your Honor. Specifically, we object to Instruction

Number 5. We have a couple grounds for objecting here. First, this is an instruction

where the State has combined the typical presumption of innocence instruction

along with the reasonable doubt instruction. These are two very different things and

both serve very important functions of the criminal justice system and, you know,

1trial specifically, and by putting them together not only is it more confusing it also

diminishes the importance of each one.
The Defendant proposed an alternative jury instruction to the
presumpti'on of innocence one that the Court did ultimately give, the State's

proposed instruction. We think our presumed innocent instruction presumption of

linnocence instruction absolutely communicates the law. Additionally, itisn't as

confusing and is separated from the reasonable doubt instruction.

- So, my first grounds for objecting is | think the presumption of
innocence and reasonéble doubt section should be separated and specifically the
presumption of innocence the Courf should offer the Defendant’s proposed
presumption of innocence instruction.

THE COURT: Okay. Which instruction is your proposed?

MR. GASTON: And actually now would be a good time, by the way. I'm
going to ask the Court either now or at the end but put both the Defendant’s
proposed jury instructions and the State’s proposed jury insfructioné as part of the
record so it's available to the appeliate court.

THE COURT: | am, that's why I'm asking. What instruction is the one that
you -- |

MR. GASTON: I'm sorry. Not just reading -- not just this specific instruction

reading off into the record. I'd like to do it that way.
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- THE COURT: No, | have a copy of it.
'MR. GASTON: Okay.

THE COURT: Make it part of the record.

MR. GASTON: Okay. So, | misunderstood. Specifically it's the jury
instruction number 1 of Defendant’'s proposed jury instructions, it says: Every
person charged with a commission of a crime --

THE COURT: Okay. | gotitright here. All right. So, we'll - I understand.
State, do you have an objection to this one? o

MR. JONES: I'm sorry, Your Honor.

MR. GASTON: Defendant's proposed jury‘instruction, second page.

MR. JONES: All right. Yes, Your Honor. With reépect to the Defendant's
proposed jury instruction, we've got lines 4 where‘it says the burden on the State is
to attempt to prove beyond a reasonable doubt the Defendant committed the crime
charged. Just quite frankly this is not an appropriate instruction. The way the State
worded Instruction number 5 is appropriate. The reasonable doubt instruction is one
that comes directly from case faw and statute. 7

Additionally, with respect to both presumption of innocence and the
reasonable doubt instruction being in one instruction: There’'s also an instruction
that says you're not to give weight to any one or with the other. It's here in black
and white. The jury canread it.

THE COURT: Okay. All right. I'm going to give the instructions proposed by
the State. | won't be giving the Defense instruction. We'll mark that one.

MR. GASTON: Given that, Your Honor, then | have an additional objection to
Instruction number 5 as given:

THE COURT: Okay.
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MR. GASTON: Specifically language -- line 2 says the Defendant is
presumed innpcent until the contfary is proven. We would propose that until is
changed to unless. The reason is because until and unless have different
meanings, subtle but different. Until implies it's going to happen. Itis an
éventua!ity. Unless is more specific and more accurate. And so we don't want to
give the wrong impression to the jury, and | so | think unless is a more appropriate
revision.

 THE COURT: Okay. 1 understand your request. I'm going to deny that
request. The instruction is going to be given as proposed by the State. | believe
this is the proper instruction. It's been approved numerous times and actually been
instructed by this Court that that’s the appropriate instruction. Okay.

MR. GASTON: My final objection for this instruction is lines through ten is the
reasonable doubt instruction from the statute, specifically statute -- Court’s
indulgence -- NRS 175.211, subsection 1. Subsection 2 -- and it’s a correct
statement of that statute, it's exactly right, but subsection 2 says no other instruction
shall be given. That being said, given the case law that indicates -- recognizes the
importance of negative instructions as well as the right of the Defendant to have
those negative instructions, we think that line 8 should be changed so line 8 reads --
or 'l just read the whole sentence starting on line 6. If the minds of the jurors after
th.e entire comparison and consideration of all the evidence, are in such a condition
that they can say they feel an abiding conviction of the truth of the charge, there is
not a reasonable doubt. | think that should be changed to the inverse and so it
reads are in such a condition that they cannot say they feel an abiding conviction of
the truth of the charge, there is a reasonable doubt.

THE COURT: Okay. Thank you. As | said, this instruction is has been
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approved numerous times and has been an instruction to the Court that this be the
instruction given and it will be the only instruction given with that.

With that being said, Mr. Gaston, you had purposed an additional
instructton that was separating that particular paragraph. I's interesting because
the proposed instruction that you gave to the Court has that exact paragraph, a
reasonable doubt is one based on reason and ending in not mere possibility or
speculation. It doesn't have the Iangu.age that you proposed, but this is an
instruction you gave to separate the two instructions.

MR. GASTON: We're talking about the jury instruction, Defense proposed
jury instruction that starts a reasonable doubt is one based on reason.

THE COURT: Right |

MR. GASTON: That does actually reflect the changes we mentioned, lines 5,'
four and five. If the minds of the jurors after the entire comparison and
considefation of all the evidence are in such a condition that they cannot say they
feel an abiding conviction of the truth of the charge is a reasonable doubt.

THE COURT: Allright. So, this is your proposed instruction; right?

MR. GASTON: Yes. |

THE COURT: All right. So, I'll mark that next in line so we'll keep these
together. Okay. All right.

Any ijrther objections?

MR. GASTON: Court’s indulgence for a minute.
Your Honor, when we did discuss this instruction number 6 --
THE COURT: Uh-huh.
MR. GASTON: --the State’s original proposed instruction has the words guilt

or innocence --
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THE COURT: Right.

MR. GASTON: --instead of guilty or not guilty.

THE COURT: Changed it to the way that you've asked.

MR. GASTON: The Defendant objected, the Court agreed -- the State

disagreed: _ | _
THE COURT: | know, but this is what I'm proposing; are you accepting this?
MR. GASTON: Yes, Your Honor
THE COURT: Okay. | |
MR. JONES: We just wanted to make a record that it was changed. And |
don't remember opposing it. In fact, | said - | don't remember objecting to this

change. |
THE COURT: You didn’t, you did not.
MR. JONES: | did not. |
THE COURT: Okay.
MR. JONES: Thank you.
THE COURT: All right. Anything further?
MR. GASTON: Not for Instruction number 6.
Instruction number 8, the credibility instruction, we do object to. If's not
a thoro.ugh or as complete as Defendant’s proposed jury instruction which, | believe,
is on our third page. | |
- THE COURT. It starts a'witness is a person who.has knowledge. That's your
proposed instruction; correct?
MR. GASTON: Yes.
- THE COURT: Okay.
MR. GASTON: Our citation to that -- this is a Defense instruction that’s taken
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from a stock California jury instruction, 2.20. And this proposed instruction more
accurately sets out factors which a jury should consider --

THE COURT: Mr. Gaston, | thought you said in chambers there was no such
thing as stock jury instructions.

MR. GASTON: Not for Nevada.

THE COURT: Oh, okay.

MR. GASTON: This is a California jury instruction.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. .GASTON: And so this proposed instruction more accurately séts out
factors which a jury should consider when assessing the credibility of a witness.

THE COURT: Okay. |

MR. GASTON: And that's why we think ours should be offered instead of --

MR. JONES: And, Your Honor, our position is this instfuotion quite frankly is
confusing and it invades the purview of the jury and there’s no authority in Nevada
for this instruction.

THE COURT: Okay. And I'm not going to be giving it. | will be giving the one
as marked as 8§, credibility and believébility of a witnéss.

MR. GASTON: We object aiso to Instruction number 9.

THE COURT: Okay. o

MR GASTON: While it is a correct statement of the law, it doesn’t -- itisn'tin

the negative as entitled to - pursuant to Crawford. So, | -- we like Defendant’s
proposed Instruction better. It begins --

THE COURT: Unless the State proves.

MR. GASTON: Yes, it does; specifically, we remind that unless the State

proves beyond a reasonable doubt then -- and then we have the same language,
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the Defendant is not guilty. Whereas the State is any person who does this is guilty.

We think we are entitled pursuant to Crawford v. State to the negative instruction

‘and it's still a correct statement of the law. So, we think that the Defendant’s

proposed instructions should be offered instead.

THE COURT: State.

MR. JONES: Again, Your Honor, this is a correct statement of law. It's taken
directly from statute.

| THE CQURT: Okay. I'm going to give the instruction as proposed in the
group here, number 9, and will not be giving the proposed for th.e State -- | mean
Defense. ' |
Okay. Anything further?
MR. GASTON: Court's indulgence. Your Honor, may we approach?
[Bench conference -- not recorded]

THE COURT: All right. QOkay. That instruction, a person in possession of |
article or object if he knowingly exercised, control, dominion, or custody dver it, is
the proposed instruction with the exception of exclusive that was proposed by the
Defense; is that correct?

MR. GASTON: Yes, itis.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. JONES: Yes. So, just to be clear we have accepted Defense's definition
of possession, sans one word the word 'exclusive |

THE COURT: Okay. This is State’s proposed; I'm not going to gi\)e them.
We give the Defense, okay, with the exclusion of the exclusive. Okay.

Anything further?
MR. GASTON: We do object to Jury Instruction 17.
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THE COURT: Okay.
MR. GASTON: Court's indulgence.

- 80, this instruction should not be givén. Pursuant to NRS 47.230 that
deals with presumptions against the accused in ériminal actions, subsecﬂon 2 says
the judge shall not direct a jury to find a présuméd fact against an accused. And if
it's an essential element or we go -~ now in jury instrubtion, to be fair, as offered by

this jury instruction the judge is not directing the jury to find a presumed fact against

{|the accused. They’re merely saying that they have the option.

That being said -- well and to go further, the State’s -- this instruction is
based off the statute, the possession of a credit card without cardholder's consent
statute. | believe that's 205.680 where the statute says pretty unambiguously if you

can prove the person has two or more credit cards he’s not supposed to have, you

can oritis presumed -- it is presumed that this person has the intent to defraud or

circulate. |
So, this is -- based off that statute ~ and it seems drafted at first glanbe

-- it seems drafted in accordance with the Nevada Supreme C‘ourt case law when
this type of instruction arises. Specifically, Marshall v. State of Nevada, the case
cite is 95 Nevada 802, 1979, and in that case the Nevada Supreme Court reversed
when the District Court granted an instruction that basicaily just quoted the statute
and says itis pr'esumed. They -- specifically they rested on the rationale of
conclusi&e -- that presumptions cannot be conclusive. So, when you [indiscernibte]
the jury to find a preéumed fact against the accused, it violates the State’s -- it
obviates the State of their burden.

| Now this is -- again when the instruction is changed a little bit but still

pretty conclusive in Thompson v. State, the citation is 108 Nevada 749, 1992, that
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'same rationale it's not okay to.remove the State’s burden, and then it's applied one

more time in a subsequent case, Brakeen v. State. |1don't -- Court’s indulgence --
Brakeen v. State, 104 Nevada 547, 1998. And throughout ali this -- the Nevada
Supreme Court was very consistent about the burden is on the State. We should
remove the burden. |

Now all of those cases dealt with the conclusive presumptions. In this
case as worded, it is - 'se_ems to be a permissive inference which would be |
supported under Ricci v. State, R-[-C-C-| v. State, 91 Nevada 373, 1975 where a
permissive inference regarding intent was given. But the facts of that case are very
different than the facts of this case. And in function what's happening here if the
Court give its instruction is they’re highlighting facts to the jury. Essentially thfough
giving the jury instructions we ére making argument to the jury. Specifically, the jury

always has the option to make presumptions, to make assumptions is what we're

really saying. The jury alwéys has the assumption -- the ability to make inferences

based on the facts. So, all we're doing is telling them what they already know they
can do. We're not adding new -- we're not explaining the law to 'them, we’re not
adding anything different. We’re just highlighting an inference that we think they
should make and that’s the effect of the statute and that’s exactly why we object.

- MR. JONES: And, Your Honor, this -- there are numerous case law out there
and Mr. Gaston has alluded to many of the cases, but if had the opportunity to say
the presumptions are invalid. The Supreme Court has never done that. In fact the
only thing they have said is if you're going to give a presumption it must be, in other
words, permissivé and not mandatory, and that the case law is very clear about that.
In fact, every instance in which the Court has .overruled a presumption and the

State, it is then because the Court had said | am directing you to find this particular
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fact. The instruction proposed by the State ways, quote: You may infer but are not

required to do so, and this come from statute, 205.690 subsection 3. And the main
language comés from 47.230 which says basically, again, you can't force a jury to
accept a presumed fact.

| So, this does meet case law, Your Honor, it does meet the statute and,
quick frankly, it is an instruction that Your Honor should be giving.

THE COURT: | am going to give this instruction. | understand the Defense
objection, however, the -- | don't believe that the instruction is requiring them to
accept that inferencé. As a matter of fact if says they’re not required to do so. And
it's permissive. It's not rhandatory. So, over the objection I'm going to give the
instruction. | Okay. |

MR. GASTON: | also object - Defense also objects to Instruction number 18.

THE COURT: Okay. |

MR. GASTON: Flight instruction.

THE COURT: All right.

MR. GASTON: A couple reasons. On one hand -- and I'll get to the case law
in a second -- but on one hand our objection fs similar with regards to the fact that |
the jury always has the ability to make inferences based on the facts presented. So,
when we tell them they have the ability to make some specific inference, what we're
really doing in the jury instructions is arguing to the jury that this inference is more
appropriate than other inferences and that's not a'proper province for the jury
especially in facts here.

Now with flight instructions specifically, the jury -- the [indiscernible]
Court has held that it is appropriate to give them. It's not required to do so, but the

Court has the discretion to do so if certain predicate facts are met. Namely, in
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Jackson v. State, a 2001 case, 117 Nevada 1186, the Court said that the instruction
can be given if there’s an unbroken chain of inferences from thé flight to the fact the
Defendant is guilty of the crime charged. If we applied that law here to this situation
that’s not at all. The flight that they're asking -- they're talking about is when he rah
from the security. After being -- trespass or, you Kknow, after trespassing and being
stopped by the officer while also carrying a purse that he’s not supposed to have
under his sweatshirt. There is many inferences that can be drawn from his flight of
security guard other than the fact that he must of committed this crirhe that he's
charged with. Therefore the flight instruction is inappropriate. And we look at the
other cases, Hutchins v. State and McGuire v. State, Hutchins cite is 110 Nevada
103, 1993; McGuire v. State kind of just reaffirms the principle in HUtohins, and that
cite is 86 Nevada 262, 1970. And the premise all along is flight instruction is
appropriate if it's a valid inference from the flight to the guilt here. That’s-ndt the

[i ndis'cernible] in this facts therefore we object to this instruction.

MR. JONES: And, Your Honor, we do have an unbroken chain of events
here. From thé moment the Defendant is seen by the security all the way through to
where he's taken into custody in front of the car, we have an unbroken chain of
events. And I'll point out the car is where he deposed of the credit cards and is
found with the purse. So, we do have an unbroken chain of events here, Your
Honor. And, again, this instruction says is not sufficient in it of itself to establish guilt
but is in fact which if proved may be considered by you. Again, it's a permissive
instruction, Your Honor. Defense is free to argue that he ran for any other reason,
but this is an instruction that we would ufge the Court to accept.

THE COURT: I'm going to go ahead and give that instruction over the

Defense objection. Ckay.
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The next instruction. You are asking the Court to give that instruction?

Mr. Gaston, it's the right not to testify. |

‘MR. GASTON: Yes.

THE COURT: Okay. Any further objections?

MR. JONES: Not to the jury instructions.

THE COURT: Okay. Is there any other instruction that you propose?

MR. GASTON: Yes, there is.

THE COURT: Ok'ay.

MR. DICKERSON: Your Honor, just - I'm sorry. | do want to point out that
Instruction number 21 we did all agree to make a change, lines three and four, it
was changed at Defense request to your duty is confined to determination of
whether the Defendant is guilty or not guilty. Thatis different from what the State
proposed. It was proposed and got changed by Defense and we did accept that
change. | |

THE COURT: Okay. All right. Any other instructions you propose, Mr.
Gaston? | '

MR. GASTON: Yes. We propose an instruction that says you;re not required
to make any inference in the existence of any facts must on all the evidence be
proved beyond a reasonable doubt.

THE COURT: Okay. _

MR. GASTON: This is directly from the language in the statue dealing with --
Court's indulgence -- this from the language of NRS 47.230 where it talks about if
the presumption instruction is going to be given on a fact you must sﬁll --and it ‘
deals with an element of the offense - you must still talk about how the existence of

all this and any inference must be stili be proved beyond a reasonable doubt. So,

Rough Draft Transcript Day 2 - 42
EZlﬁl



10

11

12

13
14
15
16
17
18
19

20

.21

22

.23

24

25

instruction is given, it is very important that the jury is made unequivocally clear

it's consiétent with the case law and the statues. We do think its appropriate. The
State may objeét if that's covered by other instruotions; but | don't think that’s
actually true. |

THE COURT: Is that your objection?

MR. JONES: Well | will note, Your Hon'or,.that in the -- I'm sorry I've lost the
instruction -- Instruction 17 it says, line seven and eight, for you to draw this
inference its existence must, on all the evidence, be proved beyond a reasdnable
doubt. Essentially there are other instructions which I'll point to the jury that we
must prove our entire case beyond a reasonable doubt, each element. So, yes, this
has been met by ather instructions.

THE COURT: This very instruction, it s.aid right th'ere. in number 17.

MR. GASTON: And so the State’s arguing that this is covered by that
instruction, but it's not exactly. Specifically, that instruction is fine as written.
Obviously | objected. If the Court is going to give this instruction it's fine as written.
But this says, on line three it says, but are not required to do so, you know, the
inference.

THE COURT: Mm-hmm.

MR. GASTON: And then it gives the rest of it down on line seven through
eight. It's split up. It's in the middle of this instruction talking about this
pre-sumption. While | do think it's appropriate that instruction as written, given the

importance of this and given that the presumption instruction is given, the flight

every inference must be proved beyond a reasonable doubt and they are not
required to make any inference. So, we think it's appropriate as a separate

instruction as written here.
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THE COURT: Okay. | believe that this instruction is covered by other
instructions. It’'s very clear specifically with the inference that you're directing about.
So, I'm not going to be giving that instruction. | |

All right. Any other instructions?

MR. GASTON: Court’s indulgence, please.

Yes, Your Honor. It's the one that begins before you may ré!y on
circumétantial evidence to conclude that fact. We do think this is an appropriate
instruction. .The Court is allowed to give this instruction if it so wishes. It's not
required to do éo, but it is allowed to do so. This is supported by Bales v. State,
5456 P.2d 1155, 1976, Crane v. State, 88 Nevada 684, 1972. This is also an exact
quote df_ the California jury instrljction 224 in both civil cases and criminal cases.
This same instruction came up in State v. 8" Judicial District Court, Supranovich
[phonetic], an unpublished decision that was made on September 24" 2015. The
background of that case is -- | believe it was a murder case ——‘Defense proposed a
jury instruction that looked like this but | think it was actually just a couple iines that
the Defense had cherry picked. The motion was granted. The Court was going to
give the instruction. The State ridded this to the Supreme Court where a -- or ridded
this up and the higher Court held that it was in error for the Court to give this k'irnd of
instruction, bu_f it was an error to give as written. Ifthe Court wants to give this
instruction, this is the one they should give and they gave an exact wording here.

THE COURT: Mr. Gaston, to interrupt you a minute.

MR. GASTON: Sure. |

THE COURT: It's interesting your arguments because you just argued the
Court is not to instruct the jury on specific -- to draw inferences. Here, you're

specifically saying but if they have a conclusion between the two and they can't
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decide the two then I'm telling them they have to find not guilty here.

MR. GASTON: The difference -- the difference there, and I'm glad the
pointed it out, the difference there is that in one in situation with the one -- the jury
instructions that are giving inferences we are highlighting facts that the jury’s already
able to do. The jury knows they can make inferences from different facts. The
State's going to get up and argue that. ‘And so by putting the actual jury instruction
saying they're allowed to do it, we're not adding anything with explaining the law,
we're just highlighting certain facts.

| With my probosed jury -- with Defendant’s proposed jury instruction
here, we"re not actually asking them to dra_w any. inferences, we're not highlighting
any facts. What instead we're saying is it's a further explanation what beyond or the
application of the beyond a reasohable doubt; specifically, if you have two types of
reasonable interpretations based on circumstantial evidence, if you're applying
beyond a reasonable doubt you must go with the one that points to not guilty
because that's what reasonable doubt means. And this evidence is even more
important in a case like this where we're trying to - the State is trying to prove intent
and all they have is circumstantial evidence. And especially given the inferences
that they were given where -- which can go different ways, given the other jury
instructions the Court has decided to give it's even more important that this
instruction be given.

THE COURT: Mr. Gaston, | believe that this instruction is covered by the
reasonable doubt instruction. | believe there's clear instructions on them with
regards to when they have to determine what's reasonable and not reasonable.
Also there's other instructions that talk about the State’s burden of finding beyond a

reasonable doubt and in their conclusion with regard to every essential fact. So, |
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believe that this is covered substanﬁally in the instructions already given. I'm not
going to be giving this instruction. |

MR. GASTON: And our final ObjeCthI"l is to the verdict form itself which
wasn’t provided but we do -- hasn't been provided to us yet. We indicate that the
box for the jury to check, the guilty option, is above the not guilty option. We think
that suggests not fair and we should switch to not guilty as first.

THE COURT: Well | believe it's the State’s burden to prove the case beyond
a reasonable doubt as the State goes first in their argument and closes the
argument. | believe it's appropriate that it be set as it is and it's always been done
this way as iong as I've known. So, for that reason I'm giving the verdict the form as
itis. And thatis in regards to counts one through 13 and they've all are |dent|cal in a
sense to guilty of possession of credit card without owner's consent and not guilty; is
that correct? Is that how you see it?

MR. GASTON: Yes, Your Honor. ,

THE COURT: Okay. Is there anything additional?

MR. GASTON: Not from the Defense.

THE COURT: From the State.

MR. JONES: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. So, go ahead, you got a haif hour. Go ahead and
take lunch. Yeah, we're off the record. | |

[Recess taken at 11:57 a.m.]
[Proceedings concluded at 12:38 p.m.] .
[Outside the presence of the jury]
THE COURT: You guys ready? Anything you need to put on the record

outside the presence of the jury?

Raugh Draft Transcript Day 2 - 46

f525I



10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

MR. JONES: Court's induigence for just one moment.

THE COURT: All right. We ready to go. Are we ready to go? |

MR. GASTON: I'm sorry. We might have a negotiation on the table. If we
can have 30 seconds. I'm sorry.

THE COURT: Are you kidding me?

MR. JONES: We have not offered a negotiation, Your Honor.

THE COURT RECORDER: Are we off the record?

THE COURT: Call me when you're ready.

[Off fhe record at 12:40 p.m.]
[Proceedings resumed at 12:41 p.m.]
_ [Outsidé the presence of the jury] |

THE COURT: Okay. We're on _the record in the State of Nevada versus
Sayedbashe Sayedzada. This is C310000. The parties ready for their closings?

MR. JONES: The State is ready, Your Honor. |

THE COURT: Okay. Jim, you want fo bring the jury in.

MR. JONES: We do have the State of Nevada versus --

[Inside the presence of the jury]

THE COURT: Okay. This is the cdntinuation of the jury trial in Sayedbashe
Sayedzada versus State of Nevada, in C310000. Let the record reflect the
presence of the Defendant and his counsel as well as State and their counsel and
all memb.ers of the jury. Do the parties stipulate to the presence of the jury?

MR. JONES: Yes, Your Honor.

MR. GASTON: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Ladies and gentlemeh, at this time I'm about to instruct you

upon the law as it applies in this case. | would like to instruct you without reading to
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you. These instructions are of such importance that it's necessary for me to read to
you these carefully prepared instructions. You should get a copy. My marshal is
passing them out to y'ou now. The instructions are long and some are quite
complicated. If they're not especially clear when | read them to you, please kind in
mind that when you go-béck to the jury room you'll be able to take them with you so
you can read them and consider them in the jury room. Okay. Everybody have one.
All right.
" [The Court reads the instructions to the jury]
THE COURT: Mr. Jones, Mr. Dickerson, did you want to address the Court --

address the jury. Okay.. |

| CLOSING ARGUMENT BY THE STATE
BY MR. DICKERSON: |

Ladies and gentlemen of the jury, hiding the evidence doesn’t hide the

proof. In this case, Sayedbashe Sayedzada, attempted to hide the evidence from

Before he even made contact with Security Officer Newton in the back
of the condominium complex of ﬁ407 Santa Margarita, the Defendant was hiding
this purse, Jamie Black’s purse, underneath the shirt. He had those two handles -
swung around his neck and that's where it began. As he made contact wi_th'Security
Officer Newton, he again took steps to hide and conceal his intentions. Officer
Newton tried to have a conversation with him about why he was trespassing on the
propeﬁy. The Defendant says fuck off. |

Then in further steps to hide the evidence and conceal his intent, the
Defendant runs, runs towards that back wall, and that's where Officer Newton made

contact with him. And once again in another concerted effort to hide what he's

Rough Draft Transcript Day 2 - 48 677



[

10

1

12

13

14

15

16

17

18
19
20
21
22

23

24

25

doing and to conceal his intent, he punches Officer Newton in the face. And then
again in another concerted effort to hide the evidence once more. This time as he
sees that Officer NeWtoh is -- must have been following him, he turns around and
Officer Newton notices this. tlndiscernible] for another attack, Officer Newton tased
Sayedbashe Sayedzada and he hits the ground.

Officer Newton immediately started rendering aid and that's when he

noticed that that huge bulge underneath his shirt was that purse. In that purse there |

was seven credit card, debit cards in the name of Jamie Black. On the ground later
discovered by the car where he was sat up and handcuffed six more credit debit
cards in the name of Lorie and Michael Black. That's why the Defendant is charged
in‘ this case with 13 counts of carryihg credit or debit cards without cardholder
consent, and he did that. That is the truth bf the matter. He carried 13 cards of the
Blacks without their consent with the intent of fraudulent use of those cards. in all
cases, you can look a{ the evidence as it is direct and circumstantial evidence.
There’s two kinds.

| Direct evidence if the testimony of a person, something that they tell
you. Circumstantial evidence is a chain of facts that tend to prove someth.ing is true.
The Judge gave you an example at the start of this trial that it was when the man
walks in and you see that he has water on his sleeves and that the ground was also
wet outside; You can tell it was raining. Well as it would apply to this case it would
be something like the Defendant had credit cards in his possession fhat belonged to
the Blacks and he fell in an area where more credit cards were found that belonged
to the Blacks. That is circumstantial evidence of pbssession.' The law makes no
distinction. You consider both in your deliberation in this case. |

This is the charge and this is how we're going analyze the charge in this
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case, the 13 charges because 13 of the same charge, that's poésession of credit or
debit card without cardholder’s oonsent.. There's three elements to this charge. Any
person who possesses a credit or debit card without consent of the cardholder and
with the intent to circulate, use, sell, of transfer the credit or debit card with the intent
to defraud is guilty of possession of credit or debit card without cardholder’s
consent.

First take a look at that first one, possession of a credit or debit card.
To get it out of the way -- the definiﬁon of a credit debit card is pretty clear, and jury
instructions number 10 and 12 as well as 11 ahd 13, 10 and 12 are the general
definitions for what a credit and debit card are. And 11 and 13 explain to you even
further that a credit card includes for the purposes of the law a number or other
identifying description of a credit or debit card. A-debit card includes, without
fimitation, the number or other identifying physical or electronic description of the
debit card. So, just thoéé numbers that's the descriptions.

As far as possession bf those credit or debit card, Instruction number
15 tells you that a person in possession of an articl_e or object if he knowingly
exercised control or dominion or custody over it. So, we have 13 credit cards, 13
counts. Wé have counts 1,2,8,9, 10,11 and 12 are all credit cards that were found in
the purse; counts 3,4,5,6,7 and 13 are the credit cards that were found on the
ground.

We'll start with. the cards in the pursé. We know that he exercised
dominion and control over those cards because he had them in 'éhe purse that was
around his neck. We know that he knew those cards were in there because he put
that purse around his neck. He picked it up, took both handles, 'put it around his

neck and then put his shirt over that purse. That tells you that he knew everything
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that was in t_ﬁat purse because common sense dictate that somebody is not going to
grab something off the ground, specifiéally a purse, without looking inside of it and

then put it around their neck, put it on their bare skin, and pull their shirt over it. The
Defendant had actual possession of that purse and ail of those cards that were in it.

Defendant also had possession over all of the cards that were found on
the ground. The evidence that shows that is well the cards. The cards and the
purse are in the name of Jamie Black. Those same Céfds were in Ms. Black’s
possession earlier. Those cards were with these cards in the same place at a prior
time. The cards that were found on the ground are all in the name of the Blacks.
They're all related. And what that means is that the Defendant had these cards on
his person as he sat there three feet away from the -- where the cards weré later
found for approximately half an hour before the police arrived. This telis you by.
circumstantial evidence that the _Defendant is -- he's not only in possession, he not
only exercised control and dominion over those cards but he's also the one that
placed the cards under the car.” The Defendant had possession of all 13 cards in
this case.

The next element is without consent of the cardholder. Well we know
that fhe Defendant, Sayedbashe Sayedzada, did not have consent of Jamie Black,
Michael Black or Lori Black to possess any of those cards. They told you so today,
this morning.

So, we move on to the third element of the crime. The element is with'
the intent to circulate use, sell, transfer the credit card or debit card with the intent to
defraud. Now the Judge instructed you on a presumption. You may infer is how
you’fe instructed under the jury instructions, under the law, that a person who had in

his or her possession or under his control two or more credit cards in the name of
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another person. Well this is a presumption that needs to be proven beyond a
reasonable doubt for you to presume it, for you to infer it. And what we have to
show is that he possessed two or more cards. Well we know that he possessed 13,
seven in the bag that he was carrying around his neck and the six others that. he
discarded under the vehicle. Therefore, this p‘resumption is open to you. You may
infer that the Defendant possessed all of those cards with the intent that he used
them to defraud the owners; that being that he obtained the cards with the
knowledge to that théy were stolen. |

Additionally, you're supposed to bring with you in your deliberations in
this case your everyday common sense. This is an instruction of the law. You may
draw reasonable inferences as well as from the [indiscernible]. Comrﬁon sense and
reasonable inference dictate that the Defendant had these cards for a specific
purpose. He hid these cards on his person for a specific purpose. He ran from
Security Officer Newton for a specific purpose and he later hid the other cards that
he had on him for a specific purpose. It was because he knew he was using these
cards or he had these cards so that he could fraudulently use them, and he didn't
wani to get caught not one stop of the way. That's why he continued to hide the |
evidence but it didn’t hide the truth.

The intent of a person can be drawn from many things. You can
consider their statement that they made, acts done, and all other facts or
circumstances of the case. In looking at statements and facts and circumstances
consider this. The Defendant told Officer Reese | got the cards over there, pointing
in the opposite direction of where all the cards were located, firstin Jamie Black’s
purse and then under the car. That was prior to those second set of cards being

found, another step to conceal those cards. Whatthat tells you he's the one that put
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into that jury deliberation room, we’ve broken out each card for you. We're broken it

them there. )
With that considered, take a look at -- all elements of the crime have
been met for all 13 counts.” That means that the Defendant is guilty of a possession

of credit card without cardholder’s consent. And just to be sure, when you go back

out by exhibits. So, exhibits -- and you might want to take a note on this -- Exhibits
7 through 19 are in order of each card individually by count, 7 being count 1, that
being the City Mastercard that was found in the purse and so on with count 2, it's
Exhibit 8. And also take a look at the other exhibits that we've included them on and
how they were originally photocopied which are Exhibits 1 through 6 and that will tell
you where they found as well.

With that, Ladies and gentlemen, the State asks you to find the
Defendant guilty of all counts. | |

THE COURT: Thank you, Mr. Dickerson. Mr. Gaston, Mr. Howell, did you
want to address the jury? |
CLOSING ARGUMENT BY THE DEFENSE
BY MR. GASTON:

Ladies and gentlemen, make no mis'take. Sayed is not guilty of what
he's been charged with. Specifically, Sayed explained why he had that purse. He
did this on two accasions; first, when talking to Mr. Newton, the security guard, he
said | found it, | had just found it; He then later tells the same explanation to Officer
Reese. | had just found it.

Mr. Newton testified that he saw Sayed coming from the west. Officer
Reese testified that he asked Sayed where'd you get the purse, where'd you find it,

and Sayed gestured with his head, looking north, gestured to the west which is
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|reason she didn't get everything back is because those items weren’t on Sayed. He

consistent. He’s coming from thé west and he found the purse. It's the direction he
came from. Not one thing the Statejuét argued, not one thing that anybody testified
to, not one thing this entire trial contradicts Sayed's explanation that he found the
purse. Okay. In fact, we mention, the State mentioned. and somelwitnesses
mentioned about this purse and some items in the car being stolen sometime the
night before. '

Now if we actually look at that and we listen to testimony, that actually
supports Sayed's explanation, right, because remember Jamie Black, the daughter
Jamie Black, she testified that she didn’t get all heritems back. Specifically, she
didn't get some cash back, about a hundred bucks; éhe didn't get all her cards back,
the rewards cards she didn’t get back; her house keys, her car keys, some toys.

She didn'’t get those back. Did she get some items back? Yes, she did. But the

didn’t have any cash, any of those items that were missing he didn’t have them in
his pockets, he didn't have them on him. And remember he was searched by Mr.
Newton and then later searched by Officer Reese. Those items w.eren‘t among the
items found underneath the car. Those items were in the purse. The reason is
because Sayed isn't the person who took the purse. He would -- if Sayed was the
person who had taken the purse he would have those items on him. They would
have been ih the burse; they would have been withthe rest of the items. So, even
this expianation, this testimony corroborates Sayed's explanation that he just found
a purse. |

Now don't get me wrong. .I'm not saying Sayed didn't do anything
wrong in this incident. | think it's pretty unquestionable he behaved inappropriately

on several different levels. First, we know he trespassed; right? He's on an

Rough Draft Transcript Day 2 - 54
53]3



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

apartment complex he’s not supposed to be. He was actually going to get
trespasséd before he mouthed off to the security guard and started running away
and all that stuff happened, but he’s not charged with trespass. If he were charged
with trespass there's no question | would be standing here and | would say find him
guilty of trespass. |

You know what else Sayed did? He committed battery. No question
battery, punching somebody else. He punched the security guard twice. We heard
that testimo_ny. No question. If the State had decided to charge with him battery |
would stand here and | would say find him guilty of battery. You know what. Sayed
had that purse on him. Sayed wasn’t supposed to have the purse on him. He’ |
knows that.. You find a purse that belongs to somebody else you don't take it home,
you don't put it under your sweatshirt and hide it. There's no question Sayed was
not suppoéed to have that purse and in fact that's a crime {00; specifically,
poésession of stolen property. If the State had charged with possession of stolen
property | would stand here and | would say find him guilty of possession of stolen
property. - But you know what. The State didn’t charge him with any of that.
Instead, they want to try to get 13 felony convictions out of his case. Okay. Théy
said this case, we don't care. We're not charging him with that. We want the 13
felony convictions.

At the beginning of this case Mr. Howell, in opening statement, he told
you pretty cl‘ear there’s no dispute in this case. This is case is about intent. We're
not talking about facts. Wer agree on all the facts. We don't disagree with any of the
testimony that came out. We don't disagree with any of the facts in this case and
the facts, the actual evidence supports Sayed committed trespass, battery, and

possession of stolen property. You know what we do disagree with the State
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standing up here and asking you to guess, asking you to make assu'mpﬁons based
on nothing. No evidence supports the actual felony convictions they're asking for,
and that's what we disagree with. Ladies and gentlemen, you cannot guess your
way and in cohvicting a man of 13 felony convictions.

All right. I'm going to talk about jury instructions here for a minute. |
don't know if this is easy to see or not but it's Instruction 18 if you guys want to open
youerer instructions. The State does have a couple things that it's dressing up as
evidence of an intent. All right. First thing that they talked about and they're going
talk - it's in your instructions is this flight instruction. All right. Specifically it talks.
about how you can take flight into consideration, and this kind of makes sense for a
couple' of reasons. And you guys can read this linstruction. But this is what I'm
talking about. | '

So, essentially what a flight instruction says is -- and it makes sense
intuitively; right. Someone runs away from a police officer right after committing a
crime, fair to say the fact that he ran away probably shows he knows he committed
a crime. The State’s going to argue that. That's evidence of intent. The even sort
of brought it up. | think the exact wordé he said was that he mouthed off to the
security guard and ran away and punched the. security guard in the face to conceal
his intent. Okay. Punched in the fact to conceal his intent. So, the sécurity guard
didn't know if he had the intent to use the cards | guess is the argument, |

Here's the thing. The State's érgument boils down to this with respect
to the incident with the security guard. It boils down to the fact that this man
mouthed off to the security guard, ran away, ultimately punched the security guard a
couple times and got tased because he knew the cards were in the purse and he .

had the intent to use them and didn’'t want to get caught. Okay. | mean, that's just
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he doesn't want to get charged with that. That is a reason to run away.

flat out wrong. There’s nd other way to say it. It'sincorrect. Sayed had just
committed a crime, tréspass; that's a crime for which you can be arrested and
charged. He is in the process of committing a crimé, possession of stolen property.
He rather poorly concealed a purse underneath his sweatshirt. He didn’t want to get
caught with that. That would be a crime. That is also a reason to run from the
security guard before the security guard starts questioning you about this weird

purse object thing you have under your sweatshirt. He doesn’t want to get caught,

Now is it appropriate that he ran away? it is appropriate that he.
-punched a security guard? No. And that's a crime for which he could have been
charged. But what it isn't is proof that it -- that more likely he must have known the
cards were the purse. Itisn’t that he makes it more likely; he had the intent to use -
these cards. And there’'s some other items in this purse, okay. It's not just a purse
full of -~ a pite of credit cards. .Right. There’s - | don't remember everything that
was mentioned. | think there were some sunglasses, there was some phones.
Right. There's other things in this purse, a wallet in the purse itself. Okay. Other
things of value. And he runs away from the security guard. Not only does he not
make it [indiscernible] but that's not even standard here. Remember we talked
about this in voir dire. It's not probably, it's not less likely. The standard’s beyond a
reasonable doubt. The question is does that prove beyond a reasonable doubt of
someone's intent. We know there’s reasons he ran away. We know he ran away
because he did something wrong. The question is what did he do wrong that he's
trying to get from. Is it the stuff we actually have evidence to support, battery -- well
| guesé at that time he wasn't running from battery, but the trespass, the hidden

purse under his sweatshirt. Or is it what the State’s asking you to guess. This is not
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lintent to use them. It makes sense; right? And the reason this makes sense is

proof beyond a reasonable doubt; yet again, it is speculation built on assumptions,
built on guesses. You can.not convict a man of 13 felonies based only on guess
work. That's not what presumption of innocence means and it's surely not what
beyond a reasonable doubt means.

Now the State talks abd—utr something else, and they pulled up the jury
instructions and I'm going to do this too. This is Jury instruction number 5. Actually
this is -- {'m going to bring this u‘p in a minute. Sorry, guys. | want you to refer to |
Jury Instruction number 17. I.put the wrong one up'there. Jury Instruction number
17. The State spent a lot of time talking about this instruction. What this instruction
basically says is if you want to, you don't have to, but just by the fact that he

possessed these credit cards, knowing nothing else, you can infer that he had the

because there are situations in which -- and maybe -- I'm going to give an example
because it might make it a litle more clear. Let’s imagine a situation where a guy is
caught by a security guard, and in fhis wallet he's got six credit cards belonging to
different people. It's in his wallet, it's in his back pbcket. | don't know why he got
stopped but he got stopped and they search and they find -- they find these credit
cards, okay, in his wallet. Now we have no other evidence in that hypothetical, just
poésession alone. All right. But | think it's fair to say almost certainly he knew thosej
credits were in his wallet and almost certainly he was going to intend to use those
cars. Right. You don't walk around with someone else’s credit cards in your wallet
along with some of your stuff unless you know that you intend to use ‘em. So, it
makes sense in this situation that that jury instruction should get a lot of flack. It
makes sense in that situation that you don't really need a lot of other evidence. it

would be helpful if you had it. But you can make the inference based on
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illet’s not just keep it abstract and talk about assumptions. Let's look at the actual

presumption -- posséssion of [indiscernible] ih that kind of situation.

That’s .not at all simiiar to this situation. In this situation, a man finds a .
purse. That'sit. The purse happens {0 haVe some credit cards in it that belonged to
this family, all the same family; and that's it. There’s nothing to indicate the guy ever
looked inside the purse; there's nothihg to indicate he rummaged aroun'd and knew
the cards were there: there's nothing to indicate he intended to use those cards és
opposed to the other things you coQId do that still are not okay but isn't what he's
charged with, with the purse and the things of value inside that purse. Thisis a
totally different situation from the type of situation where you infer intent just from
possession. |

Another thing the State mentioned. Let’s talk about -- this is the other
thing th.ey dressed up as evidence of his' intent, evidence of his knowledge; proof
beyond a reasonable doubt. [Indiscemiblé] the card. All right. Specifically, there
are six credit cards and two iPhones that are found in this black car once the guy
comes out and moves the car. All right. And so the State’s argument is pretty much
that how did the cards get in there. All right. They just didn't happen to be there.
There again, Sayed put those cards there. All right. So, therefore Sayed knew the
cards were there, knew he wasn’t supposed to have ‘em, and from that coupled with
the pbssession and the way he acted we can infer intent, That's pretty much their

whole case. Well think about that. All right. | mean, let's not just keep it all day and

facts that were presented. Well on one hand, yes, the guy’s only a couple feet away
from the car. He's there for about 30 minutes waiting for Metro to arrive. That’s it.
There's no other facts they have to support the inference. The guess, the

assumption that Sayed must be the person who -- must have intentionally ditched
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those cards. |

Now let's look at the othér fact that the State didn't really mention when
they were talking about this. Okay. Well Mr. Newton's chasing after Sayed and
ultimately catches up with Sayed, then loses sight of him while he's chasing him,
tases him. Sayed falls to the ground right in front of this car. While he’s silently
seizing from the effects of the taser, he falls to the ground, and he’s got this purse.

MR. DICKERSON: May we approach, Your Honor?

THE COURT: Yes. o

[Bénch conference -- hot recorded].

THE COURT: Mr. Dickerson, do you have an objection?

MR. DICKERSON: Yes, Your Honor. | had an objection to the use of the
word silently seizing as that is facts not in evidence.

THE COURT: Ladies and gentlemen, it's up to you to make the determination
on what you believe the facts were as you heard ‘em. This is argument. Go ahead
and proceed.

MR. GASTON: Thank you.

BY MR. GASTON:

All right. Let me rephrase. The guy's running away and gets tased and
immediately stops running and falls to the ground. While he falls to the ground, he's
got the purse underneath or -- the sweatshirt's-on or hanging around his neck. He
falls right in front of the car. He falls to the ground, full stop; tased and falls to the
ground right in front of the car. Immediately -- and I'm using the State’s own words
used in testimony -- immediately. Mr. Newton is_there, handcuffed; medical
attention but he's there, handcuffs him and sits him up and p!ai:es him on the curb

where he falls -- which is a couple feet away from the black car. Okay. Then
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because Mr. Newton fears for his safety wants to check and make sure the guy
lindiscernible] doesn’t have any weapons, right; he asked to pat down and
eventua'liy does pat him down and tries to see if the guys has a weapon. Mr.
Newton testified he receives training on how to-conduct searches for weapons.

Additionally, Mr. Newton has every intent in the world to do as good job |
searching for weapons as possible and he does search and he finds nothing. Now
remember the items, six credit cards, two iPhones -- okay, maybe you missed the
credit cards when you're patting a guy down. Maybe you don't feel the credit card in|
the guy’s pocket. How are you going to miss two iPhones. iPhones are hard.
You're going to feel those iPhones and you're going to take them out and you're
going to see what it is. You're surely not just going to gloss over when you're
looking to see for weapons to protect yourself. Allright,

He then removes the purse, searched the purse, and takes all the stuff
away and then Sayed sits there. Mr. Newton doesn’t see all the time. He’s keeping
an eye on him. He's around the area, he's keeping on eye on him. He's ;'Ust not
going to walk away and go inside and have coffee. He's staying outside. He’s
watching the guy. Okay. Do you know why he didn’t find anything when he
searched him, why he didn't feel the phones, why he‘didn’t feel the cards? Because
they have already fallen under the car. Mr. Newton, on direct, testified that the items
were scattered on the ground underneath the car. That's what he found, scattered;
all right. Why? Because they had already fallen. When he got tased he fell to the
ground and some of the items, the loose items fhat are in the purse came out of the
purse and spewed underneath the car. All right. That make sense. it's logical -- it's
a logical inference. It's consistent with all the facts, it's based on facts.

Well let's think about just for a second what the State actually claims
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happened. Okay. And remember this is their proof beyond a reasonable doubt.
Okay. Let's think about what the State actuaily said, what they claim happened.
They’re saying Sayed gets handcuffed, puts his hands around his back, he's
handcuffed, okay, he's handcuffed. Mr. Newton's search doesn't find anything, he '
must have missed it, doesn'’t find anything. He's sitting 'there about 30 minuies.
While he's there with his handcuffs he manages to kind of reach in his pockets and
ge_f the items that he somehow concealed earlier, hoping they’re in the back pockets'
because if they're in the front pockets | don't know how he would have got ‘em, but
in the back pockefs, reaches in and géts the items out. He somehow manages to
scoot a couple feet closer to the car and kind of get ‘em under there so no one can
see them, scoot back, and get on the curb all the while Mr. Newton doesn’t see
anything, doesn’t hear anything, and doesn’t notice anything. It doesn’t make
sense. That's another guess, it's anlo'ther assumption, and it's not even the logical
assumption. It's not even one that makes the most.sense much less proof beyond a
reasonable doubt that Sayed knew those cards were in the purse or had the intent
to use them. The evidence is not strong enough - it's not proof beyond a
reasonable doubt; it's not strong enough to convict a man of 13 felonies. Okay.
Now | want to taik about a couple other things we talked about in voir
dire. | think | probably asked the question a dozen different 'Ways and everybody
always answered if they're going to be able to follow along, answered a dozen
different _times. If by the end of this trial you are convinced my client’s a jerk -- my
language - is a jerk, okay, but you're also convinced simultaneously that he’s not
guilty, the State’s not met their burden of proof beyond a reasonable doubt of what
they've actually charged, will you find him guilty and punish him anyway because

he's a jerk or will you find him not guilty as the law tells you to do? Every person I
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call upon and when | asked everyone answered | will apply the law. | will not just
punish him forAbeing a jerk. |

| also asked well what if you've convinced by the end of this trial that he
did something wrong. He may have cdmmitted a differenf crime maybe on

something morally wrong. Heisn'ta nice guy, he did something wrbng, but it's not

what the State charged him with; that you're still convinced or you're not convinced

beyond a reasonable doubt that he did that, would you be able to find him not guilty. _
Everyone said yes. |
We even talked about beyond a reasonable doubt a little bit and said

what if yoﬁ're not sure. What if in this frial you're really not sure what happened. He
could have done what the State charged with him maybe. It's passible. | think we
even talked to one guy, he’s not here anymore, but we talked to one guy and asked
him speciﬁcaily probably, and everyone agreed that that's not the same thing as
beyond a reasonable doubt. And that if you were stuck with a situation based on the
evidence, based on what happened, if you were stuck with a situation where you
were forced with two choices, finding a person not guilty who may have committed
what the State’s said, you don't really know, he may have, but you're definitely not
convinced beyond a reasonable doubt. You have a doubt. Would you be able to
find him not guilty? Everyone said yes. That's what happened hére; that's this
case.

~ Sayed, not the nicest guy in the world. Did stuff wrong. Committed
some crimes but the State didh’t want to charge with any of that. They wanted to try
to get 13 felonies out of this case and it's not supported. It's not suppbrted by the
evidence, it's not supported by the facts. It's just guess work and assumptions and

speculation, and that's not strong enough to deprive someone of their liberty.
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were not used in any fraudulent transactions.

Going back to the jury instruction number 5. This is the one [ put on
earlier. This is the beyond a reaéonable doubt instruction, the presumption of
innocence instruction. Now Mr. Howell told you at the outside of this case that this
case was about intent. The State’s going to be asking you to make some guesses
about intent but to stay focused this case is about intent, and he's right. That's what
this case is about. You still have to think about it.

Sayed has found an apartme'nt complex. [t's not a business. No
fraudulent transactions were ever used on this card. [n fact, if you actually look at
the card --

MR. DICKERSON: Your Honor, may we approach?

THE COURT: Yes.

| ~ [Bench conference -- not recorded]

THE COURT: Again, this argument, Ladies and gentlemen.
BY MR. GASTON:

" There were no fraudulent transactions on this card. If these cards had
been used in fraudulent transactions, you would have'h_eard about it. The State
would ask, | promise you. The District Attorney would have stood up here and said
these cards were used at Best Buy in this location. They were used to buy this;

right. They didn’t do that because none of the transactions were used. These cards

Additionalty, Sayed had no other propeﬁy on his person other than
purse., He didn’t have cash, he didn’t IDs, he didn't have any cards. He didn't have
anything on the purse or on his person because it's not like he looked inside and
reached in and decided what he wanted to put in his pocket and kept the rest in the

purse. That never happened because he didn’t have anything on at all. He was
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searched by Néwton, he was searched by Officer Reese. Nothing was found on his
person.
Additionally, if we actually look at the cards -- if you take a close look at

the cards -- | don't know if you were able to follow that -- all the [indiscernible] and

the numbers and stuff, if you look at the cards more than half the cards are expired.

He wouldn’t even be able to use those cards anyway. On the other hand, yeah, he

possessed the purse. !t's not proof beyond a reasonable doubt especially in light of
everything else.

All right. Now [ want to tie in the jury instruction. You're here to do a
very important job. | don't know if you guys noticed but jury selection, picking the
jury, was aimdst half this trial time wise. [t's important. Everyone here is here fora
reason. They were selected, they made it past the jury selection. They're selected
because they understand how important this job is, how important it is to follow the
law, and the different consequences your action has either way. And in fact if we
actually look at the jury instruction, it mentions on line 6 govern or control a person
in the more weighty affairs of life. On line 8 it says an abiding conviction in the truth
of the charge, abiding conviction, one that will stay with you [indiscemible] and will
abide with you. it's pretty clear just from even reading the instruction even if you -
never even heard the attorney speak -- all right -- just [indiscernible] good in reading
the instruction your decision is important because however you decide, one way or
the other, your decision today will forever change Sayed's life.

And so the State is asking you to make that decision, that important
decision, based on almost no evidence. The State will stand up here before you --
they're going to get up here, they get one more chance to talk, they get up here and

they're going to ask you to find him guilty based on nothing but guess work and
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speculation. There's no evidence that Sayed knew what was in that purse, there's B
no evidence that Sayed had the intent to use those cards, and you cannot and must
not guess your way into convicting a man of 13 felonies. Please find Sayed not
guilty to a crime.
THE COURT: Al right. Thank you, Mr. Gaston.
| REBUTTAL ARGUMENT
BY MR. JONES:

Ladies and gentlemen of the jury, you heard from Officer-Cory Newton.
You heard Officer Newton indicate that he first met Defendant back here in the back
of this complex; that the only entrances to this complex are up front. There's two
driveways and one pedestrian entrance. The rest of this complex is all one big wall.

He first met Defendant back heré and he was heading from this
directioh. So, from -- | believe west was what we all agreed on; he was coming from
this direcfion and he met up with him here. This is where the first encounter
occurred and then they started heading towards this direction. _

Defendant has said that as wel! to the officer. He sort of gestured over
in this direction as to where he first saw the purse, he being Defendant. So,
Defendant obtained the purse somewhere over on this street. He manages to bring
the purse to this location where he's found by Officer Newton. A confrontation
oceurs and then he heads over to the wall ahd eventually to right behind the
dumpster. Now that dumpster location is important because that's where six credit
cards were found, six different credit cards.- And we saw from security -- excuse me
_ we saw from. Office NeW’ton where some of these cards were found. And you'll
have é chance to take these exhibits back and look at them during your deliberation,

and what's I'm showing you now is State’s Exhibit number 1. You can see it clearly
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